inni iki Municipality
Winnie Mad%klzelamMandelq Local
Audited Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

) ,NE{A-RMNDELA Locy;

P W A,
, <<,‘t‘ Y
& CHIEF FINANGIA; OFFICER

£

30 Nov 2022

POBOX 12 517428 <838, TR
3

WINNIE MADJK!ZELA-MANDELA

LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
PO BOX 12 BizANA 4800

30NOV 202

OFFICE OF TH LUNLELF AL AN AGER
| p L: 039 2¢9 023p

. FAX: 03951 g97

18



Winnie Madikizela-Mandela L.ocal Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

General Information
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

General Information
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General Information
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Managemaent Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate aceounting records and is
responsible for the content and integrity of the audited annual financial statements and related financlal information included in this report. It is
the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the audited annuat financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors
are engaged to express an independent opinicn on the audited annual financial statements and are given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data.

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on the pages o follow in terms of 5126(1) of the
MFMA and which 1 have signed on behalf of the municipality.

| certify that the salaries, benefits and allowances as disclosed in notes 31 and 32 of these financial statements are within the upper limits of
the framework envisioned in section 218 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act and the Minister of
Cooperative Governance & Traditional Affairs determination in accordance with this Act.

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP} including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The audited annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting poficies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

1 acknowledge thai | am ultimately responsible for the system of intemnal financial control established by the municipality and place
considerable importance on maintalning a streng control environment. To enable mysaif to meet these responsibilities, | set standards for
internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibiliies within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. Thase controls are monitored throughout the municipality and ali empioyees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the municipality’s business Is canducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach, The
focus of risk management in the municlpality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints,

lam aof the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal controt pravides reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the audited annual financial statements. However, any system of
internal financiat control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

| have reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year year to 30 June 2023 and, in the light of this review and the current financiat
pasition,] am saflsfled that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
fuiure,

1 out on page s 6 to 103, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by

/ L Mahlaka
unicipal Manager




Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 3C June 2022

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories 7 449 850 2046 473

Operating lease asset 8 11 662 045 7813 477

Other Receivables frem exchange fransactions 9 2373190 9421 134

Receivables from nan-exchange transactions 10 1727 859 1243 139

Statutory receivables 11 37726703 35 387 402

VAT receivable 12 12 783 550 15608 949

Prepayments 13 12 118 629 17 176 976

Recelvables from exchange transactions 14 25930 092 20 514 018

Cash and cash equivalents 15 277108 823 258 162 213
381 880 741 367173781

Non-Current Assets

Investment praoperty 3 39090183 36654 783

Property, plant and equipment 4 766 068 656 699 573 136

Intangible assets 5 43 247 69 315

Heritage assets 6 1260798 1230799
806 462 835 737 528 033

Total Assets 1188 343626 1104701 814

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions 16 47 256 788 44 334 448

Consumer deposits 17 505 877 504 619

Unspent conditional grants and receipis 18 7 445 110 5058 414

Provisions 19 20 307 658 20 685 823
75 515 435 70 583 304

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 19 22 483 945 5 246 062

Total Liabilities 97 999 381 75 829 366

Net Assets 1080 344 245 1 028 872 448

Accumulated surplus 1090 344 245 1 028 872 448

Total Net Assets 1090 344 245 1 028 872 448
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*®

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges 22 42138 922 40 257 499
Rental of facilities and equipment 23 7510 508 5 876 088
Agency services 24 1202 470 1280875
Commissions received 25 144 819 131 850
Recoveries 25 364 022 275513
Other income 25 382 543 373672
Interest received 26 15 474 310 11879203
Total revenue from exchange transactions 87 217 594 60 084 500

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Taxation revenue

Property rates 27 21163 194 20 144 887
Licences and Permits (Non-exchange) 28 2141209 2343083
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 29 375 834 380 415 425 820
Gavernment donations 30 78 999 -
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits A 386 474 688 199
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions ’ 399 604 256 438 601 769
Total revenue 21 466 821 850 488 686 269
Expenditure
Employee related costs 32 (116 655 429) (110721 661}
Remuneration of councillors _ 33 (24 782 223) (23 964 375)
Depreciation and amortisation 34 (44 087 214) (40 179 861}
Impairments 61 (8 555 816 -
Finance costs ) 35 - {1473)
Lease rentals cn operating lease 35 (3 643 567) (5 145 360}
Debt Impairment 37 (821 631) (5 208 182)
Bulk purchases 38 (40 211 160) (35 021 699)
Confracted services 39 (57 071 4886) (32 951 257)
Transfers and Subsidies 44 (1251 198) (4 498 717}
General Expenses 41 (64 170 451) (41 474 662}
Total expenditure i {361 260 '!75). (299 167 047)
Operating Surplus (deficit) 105 561 675 1989 519 222
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 42 (46 551 292) (43 412 919)
Fair vafue adjustments 43 2 461 400 1 069 204
' (44 089 892) (42 343 625)
Surplus for the year ' 61 471 783 157 175 597
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated  Toial net assets

surplus / deficit

Opening batance as previously reported
Adjustments

Carrection of errors 58

Prior year adjustments 59

Balance at 01 July 2020 as restated*
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Total changes

Opening balance as previously reparted
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2021 as restated*
Surplus/{Deficit} for the year

Total changes
Balance at 30 June 2022
Note(s)
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871 515 338 871 515 338
180 000 180 000
1513 1513

871 696 851 871 696 851
157 175 bg7 167 176 597
157 175 597 157 175 597

1028 872 462
1028 872 462
61471783

1028 872 462
1028 872 462
61471783

61471783

81471783

1090 344 245

1090 344 245
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Arnhual Financial Statementis for the year ended 30 June 2022

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Sale of goods and services 72086778 47 341 854

Grants 378 221 076 412 969 733

Interast income 15 474 310 11 879 203
465 792 164 472130790

Payments

Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs

Net cash flows from operating activities 45

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4
Purchase of heritage assets <]

Net cash flows from investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15
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(141 437 652)

(134 586 036)

(145594 774) {128 772 839)

- (1473
(287 032 426) (264 460 348)
178 759 738 207 670 442

{159 792 150)
9022
(30 000}

(123 428 047)
275512

{159 813 128)

(123 152 535)

18 946 610 84 517 907
258 162 213 173 644 306
277 108 823 258 162 213
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accruat Basis

Approved budget  Adjustments Final Budget  Actual amounts Difference
on comparable  hetween final

Reference

basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 43 474 003 5718 43479719 42 138 922 (1340797)
Rental of facilities and equipment 3092 800 929 558 4022 358 7 510 508 3488 150
Agency services 1 265 452 71 260 1336712 1202 470 (134 242)
Commissions received 130 464 - 130 464 144 819 14 355
Recaveries - - - 364 022 364 022
Other income - (roliup) 13350786 (483 518) 851 5§58 382 543 {469 015}
Interest received 15 179 343 - 15179 343 15 474 310 254 967
Total revenue from exchange 64 477 138 523 G168 65 000 154 67 217 594 2217 440
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Properiy rates 26 171 348 (4 888 028) 21 283 321 21163 194 {120 127)
Licences and Permits {Noh- 2 755 860 (877 214) 1 878 646 2141 209 262 563
exchange)
Transfer ravenue
Government grants & subsidies 295 690 000 . 3283 346 298 973 346 295 672 374 {3 300 972)
Public contributions and donations - - . 78 999 78 999
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 938 096 - 938 098 386 474 (551 622)
Totai revenue from non-exchange 325 555 305 (2481896} 323 073 409 319 442 250 (3 631 159)
transactions 7
Total revenue 390 032 443 (1 958 880) 388 073 563 386 659 844 {1 413 719)
Expenditure . .
Personnal (126 853 784) 7364448  {119488338) (116 655 428) 2833809
Remuneraticn of councillors (26 006 884) - (26 006 834) (24 782 223) 1224 861
Depreciation and amorlisation (52 681 812) : - (52681 812) (44 097 214) 8 584 598
impairment loss - (15 000 Q00) {15 000 000) (8 555 8186) 6444 184
Finance costs (150 000) - (150 000) - 150 000
Lease rentals on operating fease (4 854 420) - {4 854 420) (3 643 567) 1210 853
Debt Impairment : (9 600 000) - (9 600 000) (821 831) 8778 368
Bulk purchases (40 777 132 - (40777132) (40 211 160 565 972
Contracted Services (98 847 612) 62918 (98 784 694) (57 071 486) 41713 208
Transfers and Subsidies (5 906 906) (143 490) (6 050 396} (1251 198) 4799 198
Loss on disposal of assets - (38718 390) (38718390} (46 551 292) {7 832 902)
General Expenses (67 850 818) (5961183) (73812001} (64 170 451) 9 641 550
Total expenditure {433 529 368) (52 395699) (485 925067) (407 811 467) 78 113 600
Operating deficit {43 496 925) {54 354 579) {97 851 504) {21 151 623} 76 699 881
Transfers recognised-capital 99 295 500 (3 120 827) 96 174 673 80 162 006 (16 012 667)
contributions
Fair value adjustments - - - 2 481 400 2 461 400

99 285 500 {3120 827) 96 174 673 82 623 408 {13 551 267)
Surplus before taxation 55 798 575 (57 475 4086} (1 676 831) 61 471 783 63148 614
Actual Amount on Comparable 55 798 575 {57 475 4086) (1 676 B31) 61471783 63 148 614

Basis as Presented in the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement

Reconciliation
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Appreved budget  Adjustments Final Budget  Actual amounts Difference Reference
on comparable  between final
basis buidget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 1524 487 950 530 2475017 449 850 (2 025 167)
Operating lease asset - - - 11 662 045 11 662 045
Other Recelvables from exchange 37 367 615 {5153 872) 32243643 2373180 (29 870 453)
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange 46 512 383 (4 741 625) 41770758 1 727 859 (40 042 899)
transactions
Statutory receivables - - - 37 726 703 37726 703
VAT receivable - - - 12 783 550 12 783 550
Prepayments - - - 12 118 629 12118 629
Receivables from exchange - - - 25 930 092 25 930 092
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents 191 597 712 (360463) 191237249 277108 823 85871574 -

277 032 197 {9 305 530) 267 726 667 381 880 7414 114 154 074
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 32 436 273 4218 510 36 654 783 36 090 183 2435 400
Property, plant and equipment 785 508 008 35877047 791386085 766 068 656 (25 317 399)
Intangible assets 73048 (73 048) - 43247 43 247
Heritage assets 1340 79% (110 000} 1230799 1260 799 30 000

789 359 128 33912 509 829 271 637 806 462 885 {22 808 752}
Total Assets 1 066 391 325 30606979 1096998304 1188343626 91 345 322
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange 28 927 820 15015 919 43943739 47 256 789 3313 050
transactions i
Consumer deposits 502 861 1731 504 622 '505 877 . 1255
Unspent conditional grants and - - - 7 445110 7445110
receipts
Provisions 18 953 469 36 854 19990 323 20 307 658 317 336

49 384 180 15 054 504 64 438 684 75 515 435 11 0786 751

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 5 485 061 {248 999) 5 246 062 22 483 946 17 237 884
Total Liabilities 54 879 241 14 805 505 69 684 748 97 999 381 28 314 835
Net Assets 1011 512 084 15801474 1027 313558 1090344 245 63 030 637
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to Owners
of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus 1011512 084 15801474 10273135858 1 090 344 245 63 030 687

E



Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved budget  Adjustments Final Budget  Actual amounts Difference Reference
on comparable  between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Ratepayers and other a5 193 600 {358 914) 94 833 686 72 096 778 (22 736 908}
Grants 394 985 504 182518 335148022 378 221 076 {16 926 946}
Interest income 10 046 591 - 10 046 591 15 474 310 5427 719
500 225 695 {197 396) 500 028 289 465 792 164 {34 236 135)
Payments
Employee costs (152 860 668) 7364 446 (145496 222) (141 437 852) 4 058 570
Suppliers (217 777 553) (3310671) (221 088 224} (145 594 774) 75493 450
Finance costs (50 004) - (50 004) - 50 004
{370 688 225) 4053775 (366 634 450) (287 032 426) 79 602 024
Net cash flows from operating 129 537 470 3 856 379 133 393 849 178 759738 45 365 889
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and {19176 119y (81 141181) (200 317300} (159 792 150) 40 525 150
equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant - - - §022 8022
and equipment
Purchases of heritage assets - - - {30 000) (30 000)
Net cash flows from investing (119176 119) {81 141 181) (200317 300) (159 813 128) 40 504 172
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 10 361 351 (77 284 802y (66 923 451) 18 946 610 85 870 061
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the 181 238 385 76924335 258160700 258 162213 1513
baginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the 191 597 716 (360 467} 191 237 249 277 108 823 85871 574

end of the year

Reconciliation
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Audited Annual Financial Statements

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of
2003).

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual pasis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise, Thay are presented in Scuth African Rand.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting poficies for material transactions, events or conditions were
developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not cffset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP,

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these audited annual financial
statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency

These audited annuaf financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality.
1.2 Going concern assumption

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to operate as a
going concarn for af least the next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the audited annual financial statements, management made estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in
the audited annual financial statements and related disclosures, Use of available information and the application of judgement is irnherent in the
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the audited annuat financial
statements. Significant judgemenis include:

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of tha reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financiai assets held by the municipality is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The municipality
uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer guotes for similar insiruments are used for long-term debt. Other technigues, such as esfimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financiaf instruments. The fair vafue of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting periad.

The carrying value less Allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables and payablas are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair
value of financial Rabllities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future cantraciual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available 1o the municipality for similar financiaf instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating/service units and individuat assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that
the key assumption may change which may thers impact cur estimations and may then require a materiat adjustment to the carrying value of
assets, '

The municipality reviews and fests the carrying value of assets when events or changas in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level far which identifiabie cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other
assets and liabilities. If thera are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each
group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently unceriain and
ceuld materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors together with economic factors such as exchange
rates and inflation interest.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the infarmation available. Additional disclosure of these estimates
of pravisions are included in note 19 - Provisions.
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1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Altowance for doubtful debts

On debtors, an impairment loss is recognised in surpius and deficit when there 1s objective evidence that it is Impaired. The impairment is
measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
rate,determined by the Council policy.

Provision for Rehabilitation of landfill site

The municipality has an obligation {o rehabilitate its landfill sites in terms of National Environment Management Act, the Water Act and the
Waste Management series as promulgated by the Department of Water and Sanitation. Provision is made for this obligation based on the
size / extent of the land to be rehabilitated, site water balance, the rehabilitation cost, the monitoring and the rehabilitation period.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Management's judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions, as well as when measuring contingent liabilities and
contingent agsets as set outin note 19 and 47 of the financial statements. Provisions are discounted where the effect is material.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization recognised on property plant and equipment and infangible assets are determined with reference to the useful
lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful Hives and residual values of assets are based on management's estimation of the
asset’s conditicn, expected conditicn at the end of the perlod of use, its current use, expected future use and the municipality's expectations
about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is property {fand or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capitai appreciation or hoth, rather
than faor:

. use in the production or supply of goads or services or far

. administrative purposes, or

. sale in the ordinary course of aperations.

Owner-cocupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the fuiure economic benefits or service potential that are associated
with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investiment properly can be measured realiably,

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Where investment property is acquired threugh a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisitian.

Caosts include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a replacement
part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investrent property is measured at fair value,

The fair value of investment property reflects market canditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net éurplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

if the municipality determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reliably determinable but expects the fair
value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it measures that investment property under construction at cost
until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed (whichever is earlier). If the municipality determines that
the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment property under construction) is not reliably determinable on a continuing
basis, the municipality measures that investment property using the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and
equipment}. The residual vatue of the investment property is then assumed to be zero. The municipaiity applies the cost madel {as per the
accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment) until disposal of the invesiment property.

Once the municipality becomes able to measure reltably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has previously been
measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, it is presumed that fair value can
be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost model in accordance with the accounting policy on
Property, plant and equipment.
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1.4 Investment property {continued)

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits or service polential are expected from its disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment properiy is the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the peried of retirement or disposal.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit when the
compensation becomes receivable.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

. it is probable that future economic benefits or service potentiat associated with the item will flow to the municipality; and

. the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Properly, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the cost,
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair vaiue as at date of acquisition.
Where an item af property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assaets, or a combination of
menetary and non-maonetary asseis, the asset acquired is inilially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not
determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Casts include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also inciuded in the cost of
property, plani and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expendiiure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring
the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories,

Recognition: of costs in the carrying ameunt of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition
necassary for it to be capable of oparating in the manner intended by management.

Hems such as spare paris, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recegnised when they meet the definiticn of property, plant and
equipment.

Praperly, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over thelr expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

The useful Hives of itemns of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Land Straight line Undefined
Buildings Straight line 5- 100 years
Furniture and fixtures Straight line 2 - 26 years
Motor vehicles Straight line 3 - 14 years
Office equipment Straight line 3 - 26 years
IT equipment Straight line 3-17 years
Infrastructure Straight fine

. Roads, bridges and pavements 5 - 100 years
. Electricity, reticulation and supply 9 - 80 years
. Waste disposal facilities 7 - 30 years
. Storm water 40 - 100 years
. Traffic lights 10 years

. l.andfill sites 15~ 30 years
. Metering Infrasfructure credit 25 years
Community Straight fine

. Cemeteries 10 - 30 years
. Community halis 25 - 50 years
. Housing scheme houses 15 years

. Recreational facilities 10 - 50 years
Plant and Machinery Straight fine 2-15years
Other property, plant and eguipment Straight line 5-21 years
Park Facilities Straight line 10~ 50 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis aver its useful life.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation fo the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's fuiure economic benefits or service potential are expected to be
consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if there has been a
significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the
method is changed fo reflact the changed patiern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporiing date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the residual value and
the useful fife of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the municipality revises the expected
useful life and/or residual vaiue accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recagnised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is dispesed of or when there are no further economic benefits or
service potential expected from the use of the assef.

The gain or loss arising from the derecogrition of an #tem of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities, are
transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assats are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as
revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement.

The municipality separately disclosaes expenditure to repair and maintain propery, plant and equipment in the notes to the financial statements
(see note 4),

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial statements
(see note 4).

1.6 Intangible assets

An assel is identifiable if it either:

. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sofd, iransferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,
either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardiess of whether the entity intends to do
S0; or

. arises from binding arrangements {including rights from condracts), regardiess of whether those rights are fransferable or
separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form of a
contract.

Anirtangible asset is recognised when:
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are altributable to the asset will flow te the
municipality; and
. the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable
assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that wili exist over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair value
as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An mtangli)[e asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when;

it is technically feasible to complete the asset sa that it will be available for use or sale.

there is an infention to complete and use or selt it.

there is an ability to use or sell it

it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.

there are available technical, financial and other resources o compleie the develapment and to use or sell the asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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1.6 Intangible assets {continued)

An infangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but
they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired, For all ather intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight fine basis over their useful ife.

The amoertisation peried and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful fife of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may he
impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual valuas as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful [ife

Computer software, other Straight line 3 - 10 years

The gain or lass arising from the derecognition of an intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
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1.7 Financial instruments

A financial insirument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enfity and a financial lisbility or a residual interest of another
eniity.

A financial instrument is any contfract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or a residual interest of another
entity.

The ameortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumufative amartisation using the effective interest methed of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (direcily or through the use cof an allowance account) for
Impairment or uncellectibitity.

A concessionary foan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market refated.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial lass for the other party by failing to discharge an obtigation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will flucivate because of changas in foreign exchange
rates.

Derecogrnition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an municipality statement of financial position.

A derivative is a financial insirument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

. Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commadity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not spacific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying'’).

. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investiment that is smailler than would be required for other types of contracis that
wouid be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

. [t is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial fiability (or group of financial assets
ar financial liabflities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate
that exacily discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financlal liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall
estimate cash flows considering all contractual ferms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, cali and simitar optiens) but shall
not consider future credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the coniract that are an
integral part of the effactive interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of simifar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows ar the expected life of a financial
instrument {(or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the confractual cash flows over the fuli contractual term of the financial
instrument {or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liahility settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length
transactior.

Afinancial assetis:
. cash;
L a residual interest of another entity; or
. a confractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liahiliies with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the
entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer {o make specified payments to reimburse the holder for & loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make paymeni when due in accordance with the original or medified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual cbligation io:
. deliver cash or another financial asset to anather enity; or
. exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourahie to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commiiment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than shori-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fufure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilf fluctuate because of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial insfrument ar its issuer, or faciors affecting ali similar financiat instruments traded in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when coniractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity afier deducting all of its liabilities, A residual interest
includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
. equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
. a formal designation of a transfer of resources {ar a class of such transfers) by the parties ta the transaction as forming part of an
entity's net assets, either before the contribution occurs or ai the time of the contribution; or
. a formal agreement, in relation to the confribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets of an
entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability.
An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

Financia! instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial llabilities that have fixed or determinable
payments, excluding those instruments that:

. the entity designates at fair value at initia} recognition; or

. are held for irading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or finandial liabilities that are;

3 derivatives;

. combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

. instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for frading if:
- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actuat pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at
initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of inancial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.

Cilassification

The municipality has the following types of financial assets {classes and category) as reflected cn the face of the statement of financial position
or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade and cther receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilittes (classes and categary) as refiected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Trade ard other payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Transfers payables (non-exchange) Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Consumer Deposit Financial ability measured at amortised cost

Insitial recognition

The municipality recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial positicn when the municiplity becomes a party to
the centractual provisions of the instrument.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
The municipality recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The municipality measures a financial asset and financial lishility initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributahle to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The municipality measures a financial asset and financiat liability initially at its fair value.

The municipality first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary lean {where applicable) is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the
municipality analyses a concessionary loan {where applicable) into its companent parts and accounts for each component separately. The
municipality accounts for that part of a concessicnary loan (where applicable) that is:
. a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, whare it is the
issuer of the loan; or
. nan-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue frem Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan,

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The municipality measures alt financial assets and financial liabilities afier initial recogniticn using the following categories (where applicable):
. Financial instruments at fair value.
. Financial instruments at amortised cost,
. Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment raview.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoied prices in an active markeat. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the municipality
establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The obiective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price
would have been on the measurement date in an anm's length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Vatuation techniques
include using recent arm'’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, referencea te the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash fiow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique
commonly used by market participants {o price the instrument and that fechnique has been demcenstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in aciual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs
and relies as [ittle as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants wouid consider in setting a price and is
consistent with accepted ecenomic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the municipality calibrates the vajuation
technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification
or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

The fair value of a financiai liability with a demand feature {e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted
from the first date that the amount could be required te be paid.

Gaing and losses

A gain or loss arising frem a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liahility measured at fair value is recagnised in surplus or
deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabililies measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The municipality assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assats is impaired,

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
i3 measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows (excluding future
credit losses that have nat been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carnrying amount of the asset is
reduced or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment Joss decreases and the decrease can he related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is revarsed or by adjusting an allowance account. Tha reversal does
not result in a carying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets measured at cost:

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual inlerest that is not measured at fair
value because its fair value cannot be measured reltably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return far a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. -

Derecognition
Financial assets
The municipatity derecognises financial assets using frade date accounting,

The municipality derecognises a financial asset only when:

. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

. the municipality transfers to another parly substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financiat asset; or

. the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred
contro! of the asset to another party and the other parly has the praclical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third
party, and is able to exercise that ability unifaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this
case, the municipality :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recagnise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer,

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated betwéen the righis or obligalions retained and those transferred on the basis of
their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference
between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the
transfer.

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the
financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. if the fee to be received is not
expecied to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing fiability for the servicing cbligation is recognised at its
fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the
servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocaticn of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new financial assef ar
assuming a new financial lability, or a servicing liakility, the enlity recegnise the new financial asset, financial Eability or servicing liability at fair
value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is
recegnised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for deracognition in its entirety, the previous carrying
amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on
the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer, For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues
to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received far
the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecegnition because the municipality has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred asset, the municipality continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financiat liahility for the
consideration received. In subsequent periods, the municipality recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on
the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liabilify nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The municipality removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financiat position when it is extinguished —
i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrawer and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as having
extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the originai financial liability and having recognised a new
financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amaunt of a financial Bability {or part of a financial fiability) extinguished or {ransferred to another parly and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that
are waived, forgiven or assumed by another municipatity by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the
Standard of GRAP on Revenua from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
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1.7 Financial instruments {continued)
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a companent that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surpius or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial insfrument or a component that is a financia! liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relaling te a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revente ar expense in surplus or
deficit.

A financial asset and a financial lability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial positicn when the
municipatity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recegnised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the municipatity does not offset the transferred asset and
the associated lability.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantialiy alt the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A [ease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership.

When a iease includes baoth [and and buildings elements, the entily assesses the classification of each element separately,
Operating [eases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Initial diract costs incusred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue cver the lease term on a straighi-line basis.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

QOperating leases ~ lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straightdine basis over the lease ierm. The difference between the amounis
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured ai cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsegquently Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the jower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
. distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

. consumption in the production process of goods tc be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimaied costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipalily incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventcries to their
present location and condition.

The cast of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific projects is
assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost fermuia is used for all inventories having a similar
nature and use to the municipality.
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1.2 Inventories (continued)

When inventeries are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are renderad,
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss oceurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in
net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal cccurs.
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that positive cash
flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset,

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of
the assetf's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation {amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

- A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly atfributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.
Depreciaticn {Amaortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful fife.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an army’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Usefui life is either:

. the period of fime over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or

. the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.
{dentification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generaling asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses ai each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverahle amaount of the asset,

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impalrment, the municipality also test a cash-generating intangible asset with an indefiniie
useful fife ar a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the
currant reporting period, that intangibie assef was tested far impairment before the end of the current reporiing period.
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Value in use

Value in use of & cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the continuing use
of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful fife.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and cutfiows to be derived from continuing use
of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.

Basis for estimates of future cash flows

In measuring value in use the municipality:

. base cash flow projections on reasonable and supporiable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the range of
economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given to external evidance;

. base cash flow projecticns on the most recent approved financial budgets/fforecasts, but excludes any estimated future cash
inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the assef's performance.
Proiections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum periog of five years, unless a longer period can be justified; and

. astimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating the projections
based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. This growth rate dees not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the preducts, industries, or ceuntry or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.

Composition of estimates of future cash flows

Estimates of future cash flows include:
. projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;

. projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the asset {including
cash cutflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to the
asset; and

. net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposat of the asset at the end of its useful fife.

Estimates of fufure cash flows exclide:

. cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and

. income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset al the end of its useful life is the amount that the
municipality expecis to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowiedgeable, willing parties, after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflecis current market assessments of the time vatue of money, represented by the current risk-free
rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

Recognition and measurement {individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recegnised immediately in surpius or daficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it relales, the
municipality recognises a lability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP,

After ihe recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (f any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful
life.

Cash-generating units

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. if it is not possible to

estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs ({the asset's cash-generating unit).
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets {continued)

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a cash-
generating unit, even if some or all of the autput is used internaily. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-generating unit are
affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality use management's best estimate of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length
transactions in estimating:
* the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
. the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are affected by the
internat transfer pricing.

Cash-generating uniis are identified consistently from pericd to period for the same assel or types of assets, unless a change is justified,

The carrying amount of a cash-generaling unit is determinad on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is determinad.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit.
The impairment is aflocated to reduce the camying amount of the cash-generaling assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying
amourt of each asset in the unit. Thase reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual assets.

tn allecating an impairment loss, the municipatity does not reduce the carrylng amount of an asset below the highest of:

. its fair value less costs to sell {if determinable);
. its vatue in use (if determinable); and
. Zerao,

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata ta the cther cash-generating
assets of the unit.

Where a non-cash-generating asset centributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-cash-generating
asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit pricr to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-
generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of that
asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asse! is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount, The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset atiributable to a reversal of
an impairment loss does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined {net of depreciation or amortisation) had no
impairment ioss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversai of an impairment loss Is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generaiing asset is adjusted in future
pariods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over Its remaining
useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is aliocated te the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the carrying
amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are ireated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of
the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above the lower of:
. its recoverable amount (if deferminable); and
. the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss heen
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit.
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1.11 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the municipality in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance pelicy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of GRAP on
Related Party Disciosures) of the municipality, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined
benefit plan and are net available to the municipality's own creditors (even in liguidation) and cannot be paid to the municipaiity, unless either:

. the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit obligations; or

. the proceeds are refurned to the municipality to reimburse it for amployee benefiis already paid.

Termination benafits are employee benefits payable as a result of either;
. the municipality's decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normaf retirement date; or
. an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other tang-term employee benefits are employee bepefits {other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits} that are not due {a
be settled within twelve months afier the end of the peried in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditionat on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-employment benefits
as well as to provide henefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees,

A constructive obligation is an obligaticn that derives from the municipality’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published
policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the municipality has indicated to cther parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and
as a result, the municipality has created a valid expectation en the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Shaort-term employee benefits include items such as:

. wages, salaries and social security contriputions,

. short-ferm compensated absences (such as paid annual feave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is
due to be setited within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee
service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reperting period in which the
employees render the related service; and .

. nen-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and celiphones)
for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the municipalily during a reporiing period, the municipality recognise the undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

. as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, the municipality recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment wilt
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

. as an expense, unjess another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement ar,
in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occcurs. The municipality measure the expecied cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount that the municipality expects io pay as a result of the unused entittement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

The municipality recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the municipality has a present legal
ar constructive obligation to make such payments as a resuit of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present
abligation exists when the municipalily has no realistic atternative but to make the payments.

Leave pay

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or,
irn the case of non accumulaiing absences, when the absence occurs. The municipality measures the expected cost of accumulating
compensated ahsences as the additional amount that the municipality expects to pay as result of the unused entittement that has accumulated
at the reporting date.

The liahility is based on the total amount of leave days due ta employees at reporting date and on basic satary of the employees.
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1.11 Employee benefits (continued)

Long service awards

The municipality provides long service awards to eligible employees, payable on completion of a certain number of years of empioyment. A
provision is raised to account for the expected long service awards due to be paid in the preceding year.

Annual Bohuses

The municipality recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments only when the municipality has a present
legal or constructive chiigation to make such paymenis as a result of past events and if a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A
present obligation exists when the municipality has no realistic alternative but to make payments.

The municipality pays out an annual bonus fo its employees during the month of their birthday or annually from date of employment. A Eability
relating to the anticipated bonuses payable is raised and is based on the monthly basic salary of the individual,

1.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the municipality has a present cbligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required fo setile the
obligation; and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amaunt of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
fo setiie the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of monay and the risks specific to tha liahifity,

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settie a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimblrsement is
recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality settles the obligation. The
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does net exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed # it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embedying ecoriemic benefits or service potential will be required, to seftle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is
recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Pravisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit),

If a municipality has a contract that Is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provisien.

A constructive abligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identiifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employeas who witl be compensated for services being terminated;
“ the expendifures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan wifl be implemented; and

. has raised a valid expeciation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provisicn includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:

. necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
. not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality
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1.12 Provisions and centingencies (continued)

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale or transfer, that
is, thare is a binding arrangement,

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in municipality combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

. the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

. the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent fiabilities are noi recognised. Centingencies are disclosed in note 47.

A financial guarantee contract is a confract that requires the issuer fo make specified payments to reimburse the helder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and ioan commitments when it is probable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settfe the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an outflow of
resources may be prebable are:
. financial difficulty of the debtor;
. defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
. breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it belng payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor
to setile its obligation on the amended terms; and
. a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the ability of
entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is
?breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor 1o settle its
obligation on the amended terms; and considered In determining the best estimate of the amount required ta settle the obligatien at reporting
date. Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources is prebable, a municipality recagnises the
aobligation at the higher of:

. the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

. the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the

Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Exchange Transactions.

Provision for rehabilitation of Landfill sites

The provision for rehabilitation: of fandfill sites relates to the legal obligation to rehabilitate the landfill site used for waste disposal. i is
calculated as the Present Value of the future obligation, discounted over an avaerage period as determined by valuers.
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1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross infiow of econemic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net
assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
appraximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other parly in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a fability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
fransaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated refiably, revenue associated with the fransaction is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the fransaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a fransaction can be estimated
refiably when all the fotllowing conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flaw to the municipality;

. the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

. the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complele the transaction can be measured reliably,
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified fime frame, revenue is recognised cn a straight line basis
over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method befter represents the stage of compietion. When a specific act
is much more significani than any cother acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is
determined hy the proportion that costs incurred to date bear {o the totat estimated costs of the {ransaction.

Service Charges-Electricity

Service charges relating to electricity are based an consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue when
invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption are made monthly when meter readings have not been performed. The provisional estimates of
consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Adjusiments o provisional estimates of consumption are made in the inveicing period
in which meters have baen read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. The estimates of consumplion between
meter readings are based on average consumption. Revenue arising from consumption of electricity in the month of June is fully accounted for
whether invoiced or not.

Prepaid eiectricity

Ravenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards and other services provided oh pre-payment hasis are recognised at the point of sale.

Refuse removal

Revenue relating o refuse removal is recognised on a monthly basis in arears by applying ihe approved ariff to each property that has
improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of properly usage, and are levied monthly based on the recorded number of refuse
containers per property.

Rental income

Revenue from the rental of facitities and equipment is recognised on a straight line basis over the {erm of the lease agreement.

Tariff charges

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered by applying ihe relevant
gazetted tariff. This includes the issuing of Hcenses and permits.

Income from agency fees
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1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued)

Revenue arising oul of situations where the municipalily acts as an agent on behalf of another municipality (the principal} is limited to the
amount of any fee or commission payable to the municipality as compensatien for executing the agreed services.

Investment incomea
Revenue arising fram the use by others of municipality assets yielding interest, is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the fransaction will flow to the municipality and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
received is recognised , in surplus or deficit using the effactive interest rate method.
interest, royalties and dividends
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assefs yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised when:
. It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality, and
. The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Service feas included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed,
1.14 Revenue from non-exchange fransactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a municipatily either receives
value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal vaiue in exchange, or gives value to another municipality without

directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange,

Rastrictions an transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify
that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, impesed upon the use of a transferred asset by
entities external to the reporiing municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that pravida certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available to others.
The taxable event is the event that the govarnment, legistature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable io entities, in accordance with faws and or regulations,
established 1o provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is
also recognised in respect of the same inflow,

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as & liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction
racoghised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {continued)

Taxes

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of taxes when the taxable event occurs and the asset recognition criteria are met.

Resources arising from taxes satisfy the definition of an asset when the municipaiity controls the resources as a result of a past event (the
taxable event) and expects to receive future economic benefits or service potantial from those resources. Resources arising from taxes satisfy
the criteria for recognition as an asset when it is probable that the inflow of resources will occur and their fair value can be reliably measured.
The degree of probability attached to the inflow of resources is determined on the basis of evidence avallable at the time of initial recognition,
which includes, but is not fimited to, disclostre of the taxabie event by the taxpayer.

The municipality analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the various taxes levied.

The {axable event for incaome tax is the earning of assessable income during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for value added tax is the underiaking of taxable aclivity during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxabie event for customs duty is the movement of dutiable goods or services across the customs boundary.

The taxable event for estate duty is the death of a parson owning taxable preperty.

The taxable event for praperty tax is the passing of the date on which the tax is levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, if the tax is
levied on a periodic basis.

Taxation revenue is determined at a gross amount. it is not reduced for expenses paid through the tax sysiem.

Taxation revenue are noi grossed up for the amount of tax expenditures.

Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivabie meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality.

Where the municipality collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the coliecting entity.

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
sarvice potential will flow te the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Concesslonary loans received

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by a propenrly, plant and equipment on terms that are not market related.

The pertion of the loan that is repayable, along with any interest payments, is an exchange fransaction and is accounted for in accordance with
the Standard of GRAP on Financiai Instruments. The off-markei portion of the loan is a non-exchange transaction. The off-market portion of the
loan that is recognised as non-exchange revenue is calculated as the difference between the proceeds received from the loan, and the present

value of the contractual cash flows of the loan, discounted using a market related rate of interest.

The recognition of revenue is determinad by the nature of any conditions that exist in the loan agreement that may give rise {o a fiability. Where
a liability exists the cash flow statement recognises revenue as and when it satisfies the conditions of the loan agreement.

1.158 Investment income

Investment income is recagnised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interesi and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

117 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform te changes in presentation in the current year.
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1.17 Comparative figures (continued)

When the presentation or classification of items in the annuaj financial statements is amended prior period comparative amounts are alse
reclassified and restated unless such comparative reclassification andfor restatement is not required by a standard of GRAP. The nature and
reason for such reclassifications and restatements are afso disclosed.

Where material accounting errors which relate to prior periods have been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as
far as practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current
year the adjusiment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

The presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with the prior periods. Where there has been a reclassification or
restatement the nature and reasons for the reclassification and restatement are disclosed in note 58 'Prior Period Ersors' to the financial
statements.

1.18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
. overspending of a vote or a main division within a voie; and
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of 2 main division, not in accerdance with the purpose of
the main division.

Unautharised expenditure is accounted for in fine with alt relating requirements, including, but not limited to, rulmg Legislation, Regulations,
Frameworks, Circuiars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

All expenditure relating to unauthosised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the that the
expendiiure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performanceas an expense

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruilless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoidad had reasonable care baen exercised,

Fruitiess and wastefu] expenditure is accounted for in line with all relating requirements, including, but not limited {o, ruling Legislation,
Reguiations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

Al expenditure refating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the that
the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act
(Act No.32 of 20C0}, and the Pubiic Office Baarers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998} or is in contravention of the ecocnomic entity’s supply chain
management policy.

Irregular expenditure is accounted for in line with all relating requirements, including, bui not limited fo, ruling Legislation, Regulations,
Frameworks, Circulars, Insiruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).
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1.20 Irregular expenditure (continued)

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA is expenditure -
(a)expenditure incurred by a municipality in confravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of this Act, and which
has not been condoned in terms of section 170;
{byexpenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, ar that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Municipal Systems
Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of this Ack;
{clexpenditure incurred by a municipality in cantravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Public Office-
Bearers Act, 1988, (Act 20 of 1998);
Expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a reguirement of the supply chain
management policy of Winnie Madikizela-Mandela LM or any of the municipality's by-laws giving effect to such policy, and which has
not been condoned in terms of such policy or by{aw; or
excludes expendifure by a municipality which falls within the definifion of unauthorised expenditure.
Irreguiar expenditure that was incurrad and identified during the current financial and which was written-off befere year end and/or before
finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further
action is also required with the exception of updating the note fo the financial staterments.

Irregufar expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which is still being investigated at year end must
be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.

Where irreguiar expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only written-off in the following financial year, the register and the
disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount written-off.

[rregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condonediwritten-off by the National
Treasury or council authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. [f liability for the irregular expenditure can be
attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the
amount frem the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the municipal councit may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclese
such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must alse be updated accordingly. If the irregular
expendifure has not been condonediwritten-off and no person is liabie in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure ftemn, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure
register

Irreguiar expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No.56 of 2003}, the Municipal Systems Act
{Act No.32 of 2000}, and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1888) or is In contravention of the municipality's supply chain
management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the
Statement of Financial Performance or movemenis in the Siatement of Financiat Position and where recovered, it is subsequently accounied
for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21 Conditional Grants and Receipts

Revenue received from cenditional grants, denations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality has complied
with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or abligations have not
been met a liability is recognised.

1.22 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity:
. that generates economic benefits or service poiential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to fransactions
hetween aciivities of the same entity);
. whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions abeout rescurces to be allocated fo that activity and in
assessing its performance; and
- for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified abave or
alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies applied for preparing and presenting the financial statements.

1.23 Change in accouniing policy, estimate and errors

Changes in accounting policy that are affected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 except {o the
extent that it is impracticable tc determine the period specific effects or the accumulative effect of the change in policy. In such cases the
municipality restates the opening balances of assets and liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is

practicable, Detaits of the changes in accounting policy are disciosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in estimates are
disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.
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1.23 Change in accounting policy, estimate and errors (continued)

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 except to the extent that
it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects ar the cumulative effects of the error. In such cases the municipality restates the
opening halances of assets and liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective {reatment is practicable. Details of prior
period errors are disclosed in note 58 of the financial statements where applicable.

1.24 Budget information

Municipalities are iypicaily subject fo budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect
thraugh authorising legislation, councii processes, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by the municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained -and used in accordance
with the legally adopted budget.

The appreved budget is prepared on an accruai basis and presented hy functicnai classification linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal periad from 2021/07/01 to 2022/06/30.

The Statement of comparative and actuai information has been included in the audited annual financial statements as the recommended
disclosure when the audited annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basls of accounting as determined by National
Treasury.

1.25 Related parties

A related parly is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly controf the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other
party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common controt, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its aclivities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exisis only when the strategic financial and
operaling dedisions relating {o the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or abligations between the reperting enlity and a related parly, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for pfanning, directing and centrolling the activities of tha municipafity, including those charged with
the governance of the municipality in accerdance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family mambers who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that management in their dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related parly transactions if that transaction occurs within normal supplier
and/for client/recipient refationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourabie than those which it is reasonable to expect the
municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances and terms and conditions are within the
normat operating parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipalily discloses narrative information about the
nature of the fransacticns and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entily's financial statements to understand the effect of
related party transactions on its audited annual financial statements.

1.26 Equity Instruments
Gains and losses arising from fair value adjustments on investments, loans and disposal of asseis are presented separately from other
revenug in the Statement of Financial Performance. income, expenditure, gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for the
exceptional cases where recognition directly in net assefs is specificatly allowed or required by a standard of GRAP.
1.27 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporiing date and the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and

. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reperting date (non-adjusting events afier the reporting date).

The municipality wilt adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once the event
oceurred.
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1.27 Events after reporting date (continued)

The municipality wilf disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement {hat such estimate cannot be made in
respect of alt material nor-adjusting events, where non-disclosure couid influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

1.28 Commitments

items are classified as commitments when the municipality has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in an outflow of
resources embodying economic henefits or service potentiai, Commitments are not recorded in the statement of financlal position as a liability,
but are included in the disclosure notes in the following cases:

. Approved and contracted commitments

. where the expendiiure has been approved and the confract has been awarded at the reporting date

. where disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP

1.29 Prepayments

Prepayments are fuiure payments made in advance for services of goods tc be delivered in a future period that are recorded in the
municipality's balance sheet as assets at year end. The municipality only limits prepayments to capitat expenditure where the municipafity is
still contractad with the service providers for acquisition or construction of municipal assets. Prepayments are made as part of the municipality's
attempt to assist small business to speed up delivery and where malterials are required to complete works from distributors that normally
require payment upfront to supply the materfals required. Examples of these include electricity meters from Eskom, building material, cencrete
materials and other types of materials that contractors do not necessarily produce, Prepayments are made either at the request of the
contracters or at the recommendation of the municipality as an attempt to speed up deliver as indicated earlier, these requests may either be in
writing or verbal during project management engagements. The municipality only makes prepaymenis only where the amount wilt not result in
the whale contract value being paid, this means that the municipality may stiil have mechanisms to recover the amount in terms of future work
delivered. Sometimes prepayments are made to lock the prices for the goods that may change when the goods are required and guarantee the
availability of these resources when required.

Recognition

Prepayments are considered current assets becausa they are amounts paid in advance by the municipality in exchange for goods or services
te be delivered in the future. Prepayments related enly to purchase of something that provides vaiue to the municipality over several accounting
periods or as part of the agreements eniered into between Eskem and the municipality for Electrification of villages. The municipality records a
prepayment as an asset on the bafance sheet because it represents a fuiure benefit due to the municipality. As the benefit of the goods or
service are realised, the assef's value is decreased or cleared and the amount is added to the respective asset being acquired or expensed as

may be nacessary. Af the end of each reporting date the municipality confirms whether delivery has taken place or not. ’

Disclosure

The municipalify discloses the following information at each reporting date relating prepayments
. Amounis paid :
. Name of company paid
. Reasons for payment

Derecognition

Prepayments are derecognised in the municipality's books when the goads aor services have been received and transferred tc the
corresponding asset heing acquired or consfructed or expensed in the municipality’s statement of financial performance as may be necessar

1.30 Heritage assets

Assets are resources controfled by a municipalily as a result of past evenis and from which future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to flow to the municipality.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses.

Class of heritage assets means & grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in a municipality’s operations that is shown as a
single item for the purpose of disclosure in the audited annual financial siatements.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given tc acquire an asset at the time of ils
acguisition ar construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific
requirements of other Standards of GRAP.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Falr value is the ameunt for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing pariies in an arm’s length
fransaciion.
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1.30 Heritage assets (continued)

Heritage asseis are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, naiural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

An impairment loss of a cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An impairment Joss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable service
amount.

An inalienable item is an asset that a municipality is required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed of without
consent.

Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset's net selling price and its value in use.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present vafue of the future cash flows expecied to be derived from an asset or cash-generating
unit.

Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.
Tha municipality separately discloses expenditure te repair and maintain heritage assets in the notes to the financial statements (see note 6).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial statements
(see note 6},

Recognition

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
asset will fiow to the municipality, and the cost or fair vaiue of the asset can be measurad reliably.

Initial measurement

Heritage assets are measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition,
Subsequent measurement

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses,

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whose fair value can be measured refiably, is carried at a revaltied amount, 'being its
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent impairment [csses.

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a revaluation surplus.
However, the increase Is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same heritage asset
previcusly recognised in surplus or deficit,

If a heritage assei's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in surplus or deficit. However, the
decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that
heritage asset.

impairment

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverabie service amount of the heritage asset.

Transfers
Transfers from heritage assets are oply made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.

Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset.
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1.30 Heritage assets {continued}
Derecognition

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised (unless the
Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.31 Statutory receivables
identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require settlement by another
enfity in cash or another financial asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost method is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured al their transaction
amount, plus any accrued inferest or other charges {(where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment losses and any amounts
derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.

The transaction amount {for purposes of this Standard) for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or
charged in accordance with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutery receivables as foliows:

. if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions;

. if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the pelicy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and
transfers); or

. if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or another Siandard of GRAP, the receivable is

recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be measured reliably.

Initial measurement
The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount,
Subsequent measurement
The municipality measures statutory receivables afier initial racognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial measurement
of the receivable is changed subsequent to inifiai recagnition ta refiect any:
» interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);
. impairment losses; and
. amounts derecognised.

Accrued interest

Where the municipality levies inferest on the outstanding balance of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount after initial
recagnition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using prime+1.

Interest on statutory receivables is recoghised as revenue in accordance with the policy en Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy
on Revenue from hon-exchange transactions {Taxas and iransfers), whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipalily is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy additional charges
oh overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in "Accrued interest” above, as well as
the relevant policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange fransactions (Taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables,
may be impaired.
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1.31 Statutory receivables {continued)

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:
. Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, which may be evidenced by an applicaiion for debt counseliing, business rescue or an
equivalent.
. it is prabable that the debtor will enter sequestration, liquidation or other financial re-organisation.
. A hreach of the ferms of the fransaction, such as default or definguency in principat or interest payments {(where lavied).
. Adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in debt levels and
unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

If there is an indicaticn that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality measures the
impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the carrying amount is higher than
the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, is reduced, either directly ar
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.

In estimating the future cash flows, an municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that if will receive in future.
Consequently, where the effect of the time vafue of maney is materiat, the entity discounts the estimaied future cash flows using a rate that
reflects the current risk free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific to the stafutory receivahle, or group of statutory receivables, for which the
future cash flaw estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment Joss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates used since the
last impaiment loss was recognised, or to reflect the affect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previously recognised impairmant loss is adjusted either directly or by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment does not result in
the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying amount of the receivable(s) woeuld
have been had the impairment loss not been recognised al the date the impairment is revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:

. the rights to the cash flows from the receivabie are settled, expire or are waived;

. the municipality transfers to another party substantially alt of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or

. the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has transferred control
of the receivable to ancther party and the other parly has the practical ability to sell the receivable in its entirety to an unrelated
third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. in
this case, the entity:
- derecognjse the receivable; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amaunts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair vatues at the transfer date. The entity considers whether any newly created rights and obligations are within the
scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or anather Standard of GRAP. Any difference between the consideration received
and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recagnised, are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.32 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return, Commercial refurn means that positive cash
flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assels cther than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of
the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation {amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a cammercial retum that generates
cash inflows from centinuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly atiributable 1o the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income 1ax expense.
Depreciation (Amertisaticn) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful fife.

Fair vaiue less costs to sell is the amount abtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeahle, willing
parties, less the costs of disposal.
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1.32 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair vaiue less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
M the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, i is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet availabie for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised
during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.

Vaiue in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assels is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service poteniial of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach -

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the
asset, The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in
its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction {replication} of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross
service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the current reproduction or replacement cost of the assef, whichever is
lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the
asset. )

The replacemant cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the municipality would not
replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the assel to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacily assel
Overdesignead assets cenlain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that
have a greater capacily than is necessary to meet the demand for goods cr services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement
cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised hasls thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Restoration cost approach

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potentiat of an asset to ifs pre-impaired level. The present value of the remaining service
potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining
service potential of the asset before impairment, The latter cost is determined as the depreciated repreduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower.

Service units approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service patential of
the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The current cost

of replacing the remaining service polential of the asset before impairment is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost
of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.
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1.32 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {continued)
Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment [oss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit,
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to which it refates, the
municipaiity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation} charge for the non-cash-generafing asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residuai vatue (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining usefu life.

Reversal of an impalrment loss

The municipalily assess at each reporting date whethar there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periads for a non-
cash-generating asset may no fonger exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable
service amount of that asset, .

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a nan-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverabie senvice amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased fo Its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or
amaortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation {amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to alfocate the nen-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over
its remalning useful life.

1.33 Accounting by principals and agents

identification

An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third
parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity {an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third parties on its
behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement resulés from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undentakes transactions with third parties on
behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the municipality is parly to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting for
revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilifies that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the arrangement.

The assesstment of whether an municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the transactions it
undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principat by assessing the rights and obligatiens of the various parties established in
the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are madified, the paries to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a principal or an
agent.
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1.33 Accounting by principals and agents {continued)
Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

When the municipality in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the henefit of another
entity, then itis the agent. If the municipality concludes that it is not the agerd, then i is the principal in the transacticns.

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to fransactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:

. It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
. It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result fram the transaction for its own benefit.
. it is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction,

Where the municipality has been granted specific powers in terms of legisiation to direct the terms and conditions of particular transactions,
it is nct required to censider the criteria of whether it does not have the power {o determine the significant terms and conditions of the
transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The municipality applies judgement in determining whether such powers exist and whether they
are relevant in assessing whether the municipality is an agent.

Recognition

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that porticn of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the fransacticns
on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.34 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
The municipality does not recegnise contingent liabilities or contingent assets but discloses tham.
A contingent liabifity is a possible autflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential that is subject to a future event.

A contingent asset is a possible inflow of resaurces embodying economic benefits or service potential that is subject to one or mare uncertain
future events beyond the control of the municipality.

2, New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financiat year
and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard! Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or after

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the
municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 Jufy 2022 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or after
. Guideline: Guideline an the Application of Materiality ta Financial 01 April 2099 Unlikely there will be a
Statements material impact
. GRAP 104 (as revised): Financial Instruments 01 April 2025 Unlikely there will be a

material impact
2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the municipality's accounting periods beginning on
or after 01 July 2022 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or after
. Guideline: Guidaline on Accounting for Landfill Sites 01 April 2099 Not expected to.impact results
but may result in additional
disclosure
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2. New standards and interpretations {continued)
. GRAP 25 (as revised): Employee Benefits 01 April 2099

. iIGRAP 7 (as revised): Limit cn defined benefit asset, minimum 01 April 2099
funding requirements and their interaction
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021

3.  Investment property {continued}

Details of valuation

The effective date of the revatuations was Thursday, 30 June 2022. Revaluations were performed by an independent valuer, PJ Lindstrom a
Professional Valuer - Reg.No 935/7.of Penny Lindstrom Valuations. PJ Lindstrom is not connected to the municipality and have recent
experience in location and categoery of the investment property being valued.

The valuation was based on discounted cash flows,

For investment property, totaliing R 39 269 230 (2021: R 38 654 783), where there was a lack of comparable market data, the valuation was
based on discounted cash flows. The following assumptions were used:

Discouni rate

Amounts recognised in surplus and deficit for the year year.

Maintenance of investment propeity

There were no maintenance cost incurred by the municipality on investment Praperty .

Amounts recognised in surplus or deficit

Rental revenue from Investment praperly 7 466 221 5 854 605
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021
4.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Capitalised expenditure {excluding borrowing costs)
Buidings - 735627
Plant and machinery 119 400 1986 587
Fugrniture and fixtures 1 838 653 5030215
Motor vehicles - 1974 009
Infrastructure 47 689 604 39 319 684
Community 13130028 2617718
Work in progress 102 414 244 87 831 218
165 191 929 139 495 056
Compensation received for losses on property, plant and equipment
Motor vehicles - 267 112
IT equipment 9022 8 400
9022 275512
Property, plant and equipment in the process of being constructed or developed
Cumulative expenditure recognised in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
Other PPE 4809 318 4 275789
Infrastructure 64 045 828 60 885 921
Community 150 049 846 100 004 458
218 904 890 165 166 168
Carrying value of property, plant and equipment that is taking a significantly longer period
of time to complete than expected
Community Assets 58 470 885 38 893 905
Bizana Sport field was previcusly delayed due to Jack of funding, however the municipality have
agreed to fund the construction as multi year project ihat is scheduled to be completed in 2023
Road infrastructure 6343328 6 343 328
Sidanga Access Road delayed due fo the fine municipality received from DEDEA for working
without.
Electricity Projects 8 945 333 8 645 333
8 MVA Backbone line that has been delayed by approvals required from Eskom that took longer
than expected.
73 759 656 54 182 566
Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2022
Included within  Included within  [ncluded within Total
Infrastructure Community Other PPE
Opening balance 60 885 921 100 004 458 4275789 165 166 168
Additions/capital expenditure 38 642 992 63 174 724 506 627 102 414 243
Disposal {Transfer to ESKOM) {28 882 2409) - (28 882 249)
Transferred to completed items (6 600 736) (13 129 536) (63 000) {19783 272)
64 045 928 150 049 646 4 809 316 218 904 890
Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2021
Included within  Included within -~ Included within Total
Infrasiructure Community Other PPE
Opening balance 52 978 513 63 594 909 2 367 148 118 840 570
Additions/capital expenditure 45 509 594 40 412 982 1 608 641 87 831 217
Disposals(Transfer to ESKOM} {36 457 913) - - {36 4567 913)
Transferred to completed items {1134 273) (4 003 433) - {5 137 708)
60 885 921 100 004 458 4 275789 165 166 168

49



Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Figures in Rand 2022 2021
4, Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment
Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment included in
Statement of Financial Performance
Employee refated costs 5143 301 4 851 796
Caonftracted services 14 000 684 5 848 962
General expenses 983 249 808 945
20127 234 11 509 703
Funding of property, plant and equipment acquisitions
Funding type
Additions to property, plant and sguipment was funded from the following
sources:
Plant and Machinery
Internafly generated funds Own revenue 119 400 1 986 587
Infrastructure Assets
Municipal Infrastructure Grant Government Grant 20 609 587 10 146 630
Internaliy generated funds Own revenue 27080017 29 569 758
Community Assets
internally generated funds Own revenLe 6 962 495 2221012
Municipal Infrastructure Grant Gavernment Grant 6 167 533 -
Furniture and fixtures
Internally generated funds Own revenue 1838653 4643 115
Library Grant Gavernemnt Grant - 200 600
Financial Management Grant Gavernment Grant - 187 100
Transport Assets
Internally generated funds Own revenue - 1974009
Work in progress
Municipal Infrastructure Grant Government grant 21507015 23923 114
Integrated National Electrification Grant Government Grant 15 591 909 30 936 626
Internally generated funds Own revenue 64 718 794 32971 477
General Budget Suppert Grant(GBS) Governemnt grant 596 527 "
Buildings
Internally generated funds Own revenue - 735 827
165 191 930 139 495 057
Change in the opening balance of the PPE
Aggregate adjustment to the carrying amounts previously reported - 611913

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection at the

registered office of the municipality,
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 30 June 2022

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 20
7.  Inventories
Invertories - 449 850 2339682
' 449 850 2339 682
Inventeries (write-downs) - {293 209)
449 850 20486 473

Inventory pledged as security
There is no Inventory pledged as security.
8. Operating lease asset

Current assets 11 662 045 7613477

Certain of the municipalily's properly is held fo generate rental income. Lease agreements are renewable and have varying terms of
between 6-26 years. There are no contingent rentals receivables. The operating lease asset arose as resuit of siraight lining the lease
rentals per requirement of GRAP 13.

9. Other receivables from exchange fransactions

Trade debtors 2014 706 9072815
Censumer debtors - Electricity 358 484 348 319
2373180 9421 134

Other receivables from exchange transactions

Trade Debiors 2014 708 9072 815
Consumer debtors - Land Sales 210030 210030
Allowance for doubtful debts consumer debtors - Land sales (210 030} (210 030)
Consumer debtors - Efectricity 956 457 956 457
Allowance for doubtfld debts consumer debtors - Efectricity (597 973) (608 138)

2373190 9421134
Total other receivables from exchange transactions 2373190 9421134

The municipality has no debtors that are pledged as security.

Fair value of other receivables from exchange transactions

Other receivables from exchange transactions 2373190 9421134
Other receivables from exchange transactions past due but not impaired

Other receivables from exchange transactions which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. There were no trade
and other receivables less than 3 months past due and not considered to be impaired at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 .

Other receivables from exchange transactions impaired

As of 30 June 2022, other receivables from exchange transactions of R 1 166 487 (2021: R 1 166 487) were impaired and provided for.
The amount of the Allowance for doubtful debts was R 808 003 as of 30 June 2022 (2021: R 818 168).

The ageing of these amounts is as follows:

Qver 6 months 1 166 487 1 166 487
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10. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Overpayment of Contractor 418 046 418 048
lrregular expenditure 535 000 180 000
Staff debts 28 280 -
Payroll debtors 182 839 280 558
Overpayment - Councillors remuneration ' 583 694 364 535

1727 8589 1243 139

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security

No receivables from nor-exchange transactions were pledged as security.

Fair value of receivables from non-exchange transactions

(Other racelvables from nen-exchange transaclions 1727 859 1243138

The net balance of receivables frem non-exchange transactions approximate the fair value of these receivables.
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11.  Statutory receivables
The municipality had the foliowing statutory receivables where the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financlal Statements
have been applied, for the initial recognition and subsaquent measurement:

Fines 1502 694 7 638 307
These are raceivables as a resuli of transgressicns of laws and by-laws
Fines impairment {1 063 883) (6 840 300)

This is impairment based on past experience and assessment of the category of deblors terms of
{he policy on debt impairment

Property Raies 42 102 614 39 932 266
These are receivables arising from the Municipal Property Rates Act
Property Rates Impairment {4 814 712) (5342 871)

This is impairmeni based on past experience and assessment of the individual debtfors
performance in ferms of the palicy on debt impairment

37726703 35 387 402

Current assets 37726 703 35 387 402
Statutory receivables general information
Transaction(s) arising from statute

The Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Amendment Act, No. 19 of 2009 gives powers to a metropelitan or local municipality to levy a
rate oh property in its area. This also requires councils of municipalities to adopt a policy consistent with the Act on levying of rates on rateable
property in the municipality.

Traffic fines are administered based on the National Road Traffic Act 93 of 1996 which intends to promote road traffic quality by providing for a
scheme to discourage road traffic contraventions, to facilitale the adjudication of road traffic infringements, to suppert the prosecution of
offences In terms of the national and provincial laws relating to road traffic, and implement a points demerlt system; to provide for the
establishment of ary agency to administer the scheme; to provide for the establishment of a board 1o represent the agency; and to provide for
matters connected therewith

Traffic fines -are issued by law enfarcement officiais fo motorists or other road users indicating that they violated traffic laws. These came in two
forms, citing a moving viclation, such as exceeding the speed fimit or a nen-moving violation, such as a parking violation,

Electricity fines are administered in terms of Electricity Act 41 of 1987 section 27(2) which states that any person who without legal right {the
proof of which shall be upon him) abstracts, branches off or diverts or causes to 50 be abstracted, branched off or diverted any selectric current,
or consumes or uses any such curreni which has been wrongfully or unlawfully abstracted, branched off or diverted, knowing it to have been
wrongfully or unfawfully abstracted, branched off or diverted, shall be guilty of an offence and liable on conviction tc 55 the penalties which may
be imposed for theft

Determination of transaction amount

The Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Amendment Act, No, 19 of 2009 requires municipalities intending 1o levy a raie on property in
accordance with the Act fo cause:

a) a general valuation fo be made of all praperties in the municipality
b} a valuation roll to be prepared of all properties determined

A tariff structure is then setup in tarms of the council approved tariff policy. The tariffs are then applied to different categories of rateable
properties to determine the amount payable for each qualifying property. A statement of account is then sent {o the owner of each property to
notify them of the ameunt payable and payment timeframes.

Both the Tariff and rates policy of the municipality are reviewed annually in compliance with the Act. During this review tariffs are alsc revised to
ensure accuracy and correctness.
The general valuation in terms of the Act is valid for five years but is also reviewed annually through a supplementary valuation,

Calculations of Traffic fines
The penalties on the Traffic fine list book are prescribed under section 29(b) for each infringement and are must be Imposed administratively in
terms of Chapter 111, subject to the discount conternplaied in section 17{1){(d).

Calculations of Electricity fines
The penalties on the Electricity fine are prescribed on the municipal tariffs policy as adopted by municipal ceuncil.
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11, Statutory receivables (continued)

interest or other charges levied/charged

Interest acerues after due date as indicated in the account statement which is 30 days, if the account remains unpaid at a rate of prime +1.
Basis used to assess and test whether a statutory receivable is impaired

The impairment is based on the impairmant type risk scoring and payment risk scoring determined as follows:

Allocating a SCORE based cn the account's ageing, account status, account type and whether it's an owner or occupier — 2 being the max

score on each

If the account is inactive the status score gets a 2 and if the account is active (which means the possibility of refrieving the debt is better than
ihe inactive accounf) it gets a zero score0.

If the account is an occupier i gets a high score of 2 and if it's an owner its geis a zero because when the owner wants to sell he needs a
clearance certificate and you will be able to retrieve the debt.

The last score is based on your Active Account Type Category — Government and Provincial accounts get a zero score because the
municipality should be able settle the government accounts debt, Business score is 0.4 and household score is 1.25, In-Active account type the
score is 2.

Allocate a score depending on whether the account has outstanding balances in 30days, 60days, S0days, 120days etc. and the older the debt
the higher the score. Refer to the payment risk {able below

The Total Type Risk = Status Risk Score + Account Type Risk Score + Owner/Occupier Type Risk Score
Total Payment Risk = the payment risk scaring added together

The Allowance factor is then the two risks multiplied together to get the numeric factor, the factor is then converted into 2 percentage which is
applied fo the outstanding balance. Any converted percentage from 100% and above is impaired fully (100%).

Statutory receivables past due but not impaired

Siatutory receivables which are less than 1 month {Property rates and electricity fines) and Traffic fines which are less than 12 months past due
are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2022, RO05 581 (2021: R1 377 996) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as foliows:

1 month past due 593 581 854 396
2 months past due 32 200 62 000
3 months past due 279 800 461 600

Factors the entity considered in assessing statutory receivables past due but not impaired
Property rates that bare past due but not impaired are Governments and Provincial accounts that the municipality should be able to settle

Fines that are past due but not impaired are fines that were raised within 12 menths of the financial year, and are outside the bracket of the
traffic fines Impairment policy.

Statutory receivables impaired

As of 30 June 2022, Statutory receivables of R43 605 308 (2021; R46 367 816) were impaired and provided for,
The amount of the Allowance for doubtful debts was RS 878 605 as of 30 June 2022 (2021: R12 183 171).

The ageing of these raceivables is as follows:

1 to 6 months 3408 280 2592 215
Ovar 8 months 39 334 503 43 775 601

Factors the entity considered in assessing statutory receivables impaired
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11. Statutory receivables {continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts is determined according to the past payment pattemns of the different consumers within the various categories.
An impairment calculation is forward-looking and one must therefore use the number of days that the particular financial asset is stili expected
to be outstanding based an the best information available at year-end. For this estimation it will be best to use a combination of key indicators

that will provide a list of debtors that are most likely to be impairement.

Debtors are evaluated at each reporting date and impaired as per the impairmerit of debtors and write-off policy in line with Natianal Treasury
guidelines.

Reconciliation of allowance for doubtful debts for statutory receivables

Opening balance 12183171 9124 575
Allowance for doubtful debts 246 904 3 058 596
Amounts written off as uncaollectible (6 551 470) -

5878 605 12183171

During the current year, the municipality started utilising the services of a debt collector as part of iis implementation of the debt collection and
credit control pelicy which has contributed to a reduction in the year to year debt impairment movement.

The Council took a resolution to write-off all outstanding traffic fines that are older than two years at reporting date as uncollectible.
12. VAT receivable

VAT 12 783 550 15 608 048
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13. Prepayments

Prepayments
Prepayments 12 118 629 17 176 976

Prepaid expenses are those expense that are paid for in one accounting period, but for which the underlying senvices or gocds will be
received in a future period.

During the year under review the municipality paid for services and goods that will be received or rendered in the following accouniing
period.

These were the suppliers requirements as they raequire payment before services or goods can be rendered or delivered. The suppliers
are:

Suppliers

Belgotex Floor Cavering 6 157 483 10 423 983
ESKOM Holdings for electricity projects 3 582 228 4 542 054
Membership Fees - 8136
SAGE VIP 175115 -
Zamadunga Business Enterprize 2202803 2202 803
[nstitute of Local Governement 1000 -

12118 628 17 176 976

ESKOM Holdings prepayments is for Electricity Project that will be constructed. The municipality pays 5% to ESKOM after appointing
the service provider for a particular project. This 5% is paid for the meter and documentaticn that ESKCOM provide to the municipality.

Belgotex Floor.Covering prepayment is for the material that is needed for the Mputhumi Mafumbatha Stadiumn, that is currently being
constructed.

Zamadunga Business Enterprise for work to be perfomed by SMMEs subcontracted to the contract for the consiruction of Bizana Civic
Centre as part of the 30% government injtiative to capacitate small businesses of which work was not yat completed on the 30th June
2021 and subseguently the 30th June 2022,

Investigations revealed that the amount was paid in response to a plea by the appointed contractor to assisl the SMMEs that were
struggling to pay far materials required to complete the project and therefore delaying pregress. The municipality's appointed team of
professionals then advised the municipality pays the amount to the main confractor who weuld then procure the material required {o
_ ensure itis of the required guality and therefore pay the subcentractors when work is completed.

Institute of Lacal government for the membership fee of 2023.

SAGE VIP for the annual licence fee from March 2022 to Feb 2023.

Meambership fees paid to Institute of Internal Auditors for the 2021-2022 subscription.

58



Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021
14. Receivables from exchange {ransactions
Gross balances
Receivables-service charges 43 832 460 37 831 732
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis
Allowance for doubtful debts (17 902 368) (17 317 714)
Net balance
Receivables-service charges 25930 092 20514 018
Gross Services Charges
Current (G- 30 days) 6 075 341 3414 233
31 - 60 days 2201 865 2216 512
81 -90 days 2074 888 2 006 496
81 -120 days 1958 632 1568 185
121 - 365 days 10 388 477 11 003 464
> 365 days 21133 857 17 222 842
43 832 460 37831732
Gross halance 43 832 460 37 831 732
Service charges
Current (0 -30 days) 6075 341 3414 233
31 - B0 days 1278 074 618 235
61 - 90 days 1145 755 1243 267
91 - 120 days 1141 590 1007 613
121 - 385 days £ 035 768 7 765 435
> 385 days 10 253 564 6 465 227
25930 092 20514 018
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 -30 days) 404 911 196 144
31 - 60 days 193 274 196 289
61 - 90 days 176 773 143 068
91 - 120 days 150 330 121 966
121 - 365 days 1000 252 1104 177
> 365 days 6 B8O 205 6171682
8 814 835 7 933 326
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {6 277 162) (6 105 947)
2 537673 1827 379
Industrial/ commercial
Current (0 -3C days) 4185 889 2 505 884
31 - 80 days 1329 807 1401 883
61 - 90 days 1261 882 1323 646
91 -120 days 1257 197 1283 889
121 - 365 days 4 869 425 8 062 745
> 385 days 9198 097 $020 031
22 102 297 22 498 078
Less: Aliowance for douhtfui debts (11 625 204) {11 962 233)
10 477 093 10 535 845
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 1 484 540 712 205
31 - 60 days 678 585 618 340
61 - 90 days 636 333 539 782
91 - 120 days 580 503 562 330
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14. Receivables from exchange transactions {continued)

121-365 days 4518 801 2936 542
> 365 days § 046 564 2031129
12915328 7 400 328
Total
Cuzrent {0 -30 days) 6075 341 3414233
31- 60 days 2 201 665 2216 513
61 - 90 days 2074 588 2 008 496
91 - 120 days 1958 030 1968 185
121 - 365 days 10 388 477 11 003 464
> 365 days 21133 957 17 222 841
43 832 458 37 831732
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {17 902 386) (17 317 714)

25930 092 20514 018

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Current (G -30 days) - -
31 - 60 days {923 531) (1 598 274)

61 - 90 days (929 233) (763 229)
91 - 120 days (816 440) (960 572)
121 - 365 days (4 352 472) (3 238 025)
> 365 days (10880 632) (10757 614)

(17802388) (17 317 714)

Reconciliation of allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at begihning of the year {17 317 714) {15 148 477)
Centributions to allowance {584 654) (2 169 237)

(17902 368) (17 317 714)

Consumer debtors pledged as security

There were no consumer debtors were pledged as security in the 2021/22 financial year.

Credit quality of consumer debtors

In determining the recoverability of consumer debt the municipality considers any changes in the credit quatity of the consumer debtor from the
daite credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk s limited due to the consumer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the allowance for doubtful debis is determined according to the past payment patterns of each consumers within the
various categories. The calculation of the allowance for deubtiul debts is automated in the system which is configured according to the national
treasury scering method.

Fair value of receivables- service charges

Consumer debtors 25 930 082 20514018

The vaiue of receivables from service charges is determined by taking the gross amount less the allowance for impairment.
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2021

14. Receivables from exchange transactions {continued)

Consumer debtors past due but not impaired

Consumer debtors which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2022, R 3 589 276 (2021 R

§ 714 655) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due hut not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due 2254 358
2 months past due 678 585
3 months past due 636 333

Consumer debtors impaired

As of 30 June 2022, consumer dabtors of R 22 357 996 (2021: R 28 117 078) were impaired and allowed for,
The amotnt of the allowance for doubtful debts was R 17 902 368 as of 30 June 2022 (2021: R 17 317 714).
The ageing of thase receivables are as follows:

3 to 6 months 4138 901
QOver 8 months 18 218 085

Reconciliation of alfowance for daubtful debts of consumer debtor

2 886 875
586 317
6 241 463

3678 522
24 437 556

Opening balance (17 317 7114) {15 148 477)
Allowance for doubtful debts (584 654) (2 169 237)
{17 802 368) {17 317 714)
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15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 4 4

Bank balances 2951 488 9353191

Short-term deposits 274 157 331 248 809 018
277 108 823 258 162 213

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description

FNB BANK - Public Sector-Cheque
account -51704922107

FNB BANK - Business Calt Account-
62550717767

FNB BANK - Business Calt Account
- 62550715828

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 62459758078

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 62852108531

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 62816773073

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 62816769220

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 62028477992

FNB BANK - Business Call Account
- 628858110170

Total

Bank statement balances

Cash book balances

16. Payables from exchange fransactions

Trade payables

Payments received in advanced
Retention

Accrued expense

Workmen's compensation
Unzllocated receipts

Payrall creditors

The average payment period for services is 30 days from the receipt of the invoice as required by the MFMA

Interest charged and penalties charged for [ate payments have been disclosed separately

June 30, 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020 June 30, 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
2 940 039 9323 582 3165219 2 951 487 9353 192 3610189
- - 1 824 680 - - 1824 680
- - 47 506 - - 47 5066
- 1163 4 574 859 - 1164 4 574 860
206 67 458 8 035 - &7 459 6 526
18 2387 615 270 19 2387 21 807
357 312 393618 776 294 357 312 393 618 716 295
267 495 116 244 068 379 162 781 702 267 495 116 244 068 379 162 781 703
6 304 880 4276 010 - 6 304 880 4276 010 -
277 097 572 258 132 597 173793 565 277 108 814 258 162 208 173 643 578
9994 503 4 027 695
1471 445 1720 437
22 888 724 18 308 721
10 788 560 18 458 831
233834 411783
1629 070 1220429
250653 186 552
47 256 789 44 334 448

The municipality has considered the effect of discounting trade creditors to fair value and the difference was considered immaterial.
Accordingly trade and other payables approximate fair value.

Warkmen's compensation: In terms of COID Act every employer must pay workmen's compensation fo the Department of Labour. The
compensation fund sends employers notices of assessment every year in April indicating the amount that must be paid. The
municipality thus raises a liability for the amount payable in the following year. This is based on the budgeted total personnel
expenditure for the year and a percentage as determined by the Department of Labour,

Fair value of payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables
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17. Consumer deposits

Elactricity 132 596 132 596
Hall Hire 373281 372023
505 877 504 619

Consumer deposits for electricity are paid by consumers on application for new electricity connections. The deposits are repaid when
the electricity connections are ferminaled. In cases where consumers default on their accounts council can utilise the deposits as
payment for the ouistanding amount.

Hall hire deposits are paid by consumers on hiring any of the municipal community hails. The deposit is a damage deposit and is paid
back to the consumer after the event and if no damages oceurred.

Caonsumer deposits collected do not acerue any interest
The carrying value of consumer deposits approximates their fair value.
18. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

The conditions relating to full expenditure were nat met for the grants disclosed as unspent conditionai grants and receipts. These
amaunts are accounied for as a current liability until a roll-over is granted by National Treasury and the spending condition is met.

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

DSRAC: Library Grant ‘ 1048 203 692 613
EPWP Grant 4 4
GIS Grant - Alfred Nzo 100 000 100 000
General Budget Support Grant 6285217 4 254 711
Waste Management Grant 11 886 11 686

7 445110 5058 414

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 5058 414 7 574 501
Additions during the year 92 855 764 81077 764
Income tecognition {86 214 381) (83 004 748)
Surrendered to National Revenue fund during the year (4 254 687) (589 103)
7 445 110 5 058 414
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19. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2022

Opening Balance  Additions Utilised during  Reversed during Closing Balance

the year the year
Environmental rehabiliiation 7 627 883 24 785 204 - (7 627 G83) 24 785 204
Provision for fong service bonuses 461 614 610 802 (212 503) (249 111) 610 802
Bonus provision 2055138 2 352 51 (2 058 138) - 2 3562 551
Staff feave provision 15 784 450 15 043 049 (1 065 009) (14 719 442) 15 043 048
25931 8858 42 791 606 {3 335 650) {22 596 236) 42 791 605

Reconciliation of provisions - 2021

Opening Balance  Additions Utilised during Reversed during Closing Balance

the year the year
Environmental rehabilitation 7767 367 7 627 683 (1 053 422) (6 713 975) 7627 683
Provision for leng service bonuses 799 960 461 614 (357 323) (442 637) 461 614
Bonus provision 2096 540 2058138 (2 095 540) - 2058 138
Staff leave provision 14 785 631 15 784 450 (1643 167) (13 142 464) 15784 450
25 448 528 25931 885 (5 149 452) {20 2899 0786) 25 931 885
Non-current liabilities 22 483 946 5 246 062
Current liabilities 20 307 859 20685 823

42 791 605 25 931 885

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The municipality operates a refuse disposal site. In accordance with legislation and fo comply with the Department of Water Affairs (DWA) and
Departmant of Econamic Develepment and Environmental Affairs (DEDEAT) on the landfill wasie sites, the municipality raises a provision
every year for the estimated cost of rehabilitating the fand over which the site is situated.

The provision has been made for this cost based on the construction budget to rehabilitate the landfill site at 30 June 2022 taking intc account
price escalation of 6% relaiing to infiation.

A va]uatidn of the rehabilitation was conducted by an independent valuer (Sihle Pot Trading) and a liability has been raised. Movemenis in the
provisicn are recognised in the Statement of Financial Perfomance. The Provision has been defermined on the basis of a recent independent
financial requirement and viabiliy.

Bonus provision

All permanent employees are entifled to recelve a bonus equal to one month basic salary on their birth month therefore an accruat of the
proportionate bonus is accrued from year end till the next birth date for each employee.

Staff leave provision

The municipality offars employees 2 days for every month completed and is therefore liable to pay employee the amount equivalent to the
leave days not taken at year end upon resignation or retirement. This is calculated based on the cast to the company rate per day.
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20. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2022
Financial assets
At amaortised cost Totat
Trade and ather receivables from exchange fransactions 28 303 282 28 303 282
Receivables fom non-exchange transactions 1727 859 1727 858
Cash and cash equivalents 277 108 822 277 108 822
307 139 963 307 139 963
Financial liahilities
At amortised cost Tatal
Payabies from exchange transactions 47 256 789 47 256 789
Unspent condifional grants and receipis 7 445110 7 445 110
Consumer deposits 505 877 505 877
56 207 776 55 207 776
2021
Financial assets
At amortised cost Total
Trade and other receivables from exchange fransactions 29935152 28 935 152
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1243139 1243139
Cash and cash equivalents 258162 213 258 182 213
289 340 504 289 340 504
Financial liabilities
Al amortised cost Total
Payabtes from exchange transactions 44 334 448 44 334 448
Unspent conditional grants 5058414 5058 414
Consumer deposit 504 619 504 618
49 897 481 49 897 481
Financial instruments in Statement of financial performance
2022
At amortised cost Total
Interast income for financial instruments at amortised cost 3773232 3773232
2021
At amortised cost Total
tnterest income for financial instruments at amortised cost 8 508 367 8 508 367
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21,  Revenue
Service charges 42 138 922 40 257 499
Rental of facilities and equipment 7 510 508 5876 088
Agency services 1202 470 1200 875
Licences and Permits (Mon-exchange) 2141 209 2343 083
Commissions received 144 819 131 650
Recoveries 364 022 275813
Other income - (rollup) 382 543 373672
Interast recaived 15 474 310 11 879 263
Property rates 21183 194 20 144 887
Gavernment grants & subsidies 375834 380 415 425 820
Public contributions and donations 78999 -
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 386 474 688 158
466 821 850 498 686 269
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as
follows:
Service charges 42 138 922 40 257 498
Rental of faciiities and equipment 7 510 508 5 876 088
Agency services 1202 470 1290 875
Commissions received 144 819 131 650
Recoveries 364 022 275513
Other income - (rellup) 382 543 373672
Interest racaived 15 474 310 11 879 203
67 217 5924 60 084 500
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange {ransactions is as follows:
Taxation revenue
Property rates 21 163194 20 144 667
Licences or permits 2141 209 2343083
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 375 834 380 415 425 820
Puhlic contributions and donations 78 999 -
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 386 474 688 199
399 604 256 438 601 769
22, Service charges
Sale of electricity 37 936 997 35679 150
Solid waste 4201925 4 578 349
42138 922 40 257 499
23. Rental of facilities and equipment
Facilities and equipment
Leasehoid fees 7 466 221 5 854 605
Hall hire 44 287 21483
7 516 508 5876 088

Included in the above rentals are operating lease rentals at straight-lined amounts of R 4 048 568 (2021: R 3 159 808} .
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23. Rental of facilities and equipment {continued)

Minimum lease payments receivables

-within one year 896 046 836 491

-in second to fifth year inclhisive 4298 168 2710 350

~over five years 5164 544 8046 170
160 358 758 9 593 011

The municipality is leasing out cerfain property to Collins Properly investment (Browns Cash and Carry). The lease agreement has a

term of 10 years and rentals escalate by CPI every anniversary. No contigent rents are receivable

Minimum lease payments receivables

-within one year 688 831 637 806
-in sacond to fifth year inclusive 3352285 2236 221
-over five years 23 543 180 25 348 056

27 584 276 28 222 083

The municipality is leasing out certain property to Blue Raindrops Trading CC. The lease agreement has a term of 20 years and rentals

escalates by 8% every anniversary. No contigent rents are receivable

Minimum lease payments receivable

-within one year 178 609 165 379
-in second to fifth year inclusive 30 140 208 749
208 748 374128

The municipality is leasing out certain property to Africa Best 35C. The lease agreement has a term of 06 years and renials escalates by

8% every anniversary. No coniigent rents are receivable.

Minimum lease payments receivables

-within one year 2 256 529 Z 108 906
-in second to fifth year inclusive 10720 181 7 254 518
-over five years 94 349 712 97 451 395

107 326 422 106 814 817

The municipality is leasing out certain property to Slip Knot Investment 11 (Proprietary) Limited (Enyuka Prop Holding Lif*ﬂited}. The
iease agreement has a term of 26 years and rentals escalates by 7% each anniversary date. No contigent rents are receivable

24, Agency services

Driver's Licenses 1202 47C 1290 875
25. Other income
Commissions received 144 8196 131650
Losses recovered 9022 275513
Recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 355 000 -
Other income - {rollup) 382543 373672
891 384 780 835
The amount included in other revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as
follows:
Tender fees - 13 391
Sundry income 143 482 43 501
Building plans 86 823 77 389
Advertising 24 248 79153
Funeral fees 4424 11 641
Impairment Reversat 123 565 148 587
382 543 373672
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26, Interest received
Interest revenue
Bank 10783 545 7 603 705
Interest charged on trade and other receivables 4 690 765 4 275 498
15 474 310 11 879 203

Interest charged on Trade and other receivables
Exchange transaciion 3773232 3370838
Non- exchange transactions(Statutory) 917 533 904 6562

4 690 765 4 275 498
27.  Property rates
Rates income
Rates lavied 21163 194 20 144 667
Valuations
Residential 211 456 500 211 456 500
Commerciai 830 740 500 830 740 50C
State 1182 448 500 1 182 448 500
Municipal 81 341 000 81 341 000

2 315 986 500

2 315 986 500

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every 5 years by an independent valuer {currently being Sizanane Consuiting). The last general
valuation came into effect on 1 July 2019, Interim valuations are precessed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individuat
property values due to alterations and subdivisions,

A general rate of R0.0138 (business), R0.0069 (Residential), R0.0125 (State) is applied to property valuations to determine assessment rates.
Rebales of RB5 000 are granied to residential and state property owners.

Rates are levied on an annual basis with the final date for payment being Thursday, 30 Seplember 2021 for annual payment . Interest at prime
plus 1% per annum (2021: 1%) Is levied on rates outstanding 30 days after due.

Thne municipality revaluated municipal properties that have lease agreement, for the purpose of renewing leasse agreement.

28. Licences and permits (non-exchange)

Trading - 1820
Read and Transport 2141209 2341263
2141 208 2343083
29. Government grants & subsidies
Operating grants
Equitable share 288 620 000 332421102
MIG Operational 2 551 150 2272950
Financial Management Grant 2 000 00O 2 000 000
Expanded Public Works Programme Grant 3 570 600 2 388 996
LGSET / Skills Development Grant 338 564 273023
Dept Spori & Culture - Library 143 810 510 520
DEDEAT- Alien Plant Vegetation - 401 828
Disaster Relief Grant - 5474
298 223 524 340 273 894
Capital grants
Municipat Infrastructure Grant 48 471 850 43 186 050
Integrated National Electrification Programme 28 453 000 31 965 876
General Budget Support Grant 686 006 -
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29, Government grants & subsidies {continued)
77 810 856 75 151 926
375 834 380 415 425 820
Conditional and Unconditional
Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:
Conditional grants received 92 855 764 81 077 734
Unconditional grants received 289 620 000 332 422 000
382 475 764 413 4989 734
Equitable Share
in terms of the Gonstitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.
All registered indigents recaive a manthly subsidy of R 4 994 210 (2021; R 4 583 674), which is funded from the grant.
Equitable Share
Current-year receipts 289 620 000 332 422 000
Transferred to revenue (289620 000) (332 422 000)
DSRAC Library Grant
Balance unspent al beginning of year 892 013 702 533
Current-year receipts 500 004 500 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (143 814) {510 520)
1048 203 692 013

The spending conditions in relation {o the grant received was not met fully, therefore the grant remains a liabiiity as disclosed ¢n the

statement of financial position in unspent condition grant (see note 18).

LGSETA/ 8kills Development Grant

Current-year receipts ’ 338 564 273 023

Conditicns met - transferred to revenue (335 564) (273 023)

The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whole allocation was transferred o revenue.

EPWP Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 4 -

Current-year receipts 3 570000 2 389 000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (3 570 Q00Q) (2 388 996)
4 4

The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whole allocation was then transferred to revenue,

Integrated National Eiectrification Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 5763 876

Current-year receipts 28 453 000 26 202 000

Conditions met - fransferred to revenue (28 453 000) (31 985 876)

The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whale allocation was then transferred to revenue.
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29. Government grants & subsidies (continued)

Financiat Management Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 47 506
Current-year receipts 2000 000 2000000
Caonditions met - transferred to revenue (2 ©00 000) (2 000 0Q0)
Surrendered to the National Revenue Fund - {47 506)
The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whole allocaticn was then transferred to revenue.

GIS Grant - Alfred Nzo

Bailance unspent af beginning of year 160 000 100 000

The spending conditiohs In relation to the grant received was not mat fully, therefore the grant remains a liability as disclosed in the statement

of financial position in unspent conditional grants(see note 18).
Municipal [nfrastructure Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current-year receipts

Conditions mat - transferred to revenue
Surrendered to the National Revenue Fund

The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whole atlocation was then transferred fo revenue.

General Budget Suppo'rt Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current-year receipts

Conditions met - transferred o revenue
Surrendered ta the National Revenue Fund

- 541 598

51 023 000 45 459 000
(51 023 000) (45 459 000}
- (541 598}y

4254 711 -

6 971 200 4254 711
(686 007) -

{4 254 687) -
6 285 217 4254 711

The spending conditions in relation to the grant received was not met fully, therefore the grant remains a liability as disclosed in the statement

of financial position in unspent conditional grants (see note 18).
Disaster Relief Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

The municipality fully met the spending conditions and the whole allocation was then transferred to revenue
Waste Management Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Conditions met - transferred te revenue

. 5474
- (5 474)
11 686 413515
- (401 829)
11 686 11 686

The spending conditions in refation to the grant received was not met fully, therefore the grant remains a liability as disclosed in the statement

of financial position in unspent conditional grants {see note 18).

Changes in level of government granis

Basad on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (B3 of 2021), an average increase of aboul 6% in the level of

government grant funding zare expectaed over the forthcoming 3 financiat years.
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30. Government Donation

Donations
SALGA Donation 78 999 -

The municicipality received Virtual meetings equipment from SALGA to be used in the municipality with the market value of R78 999.

31. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

IHegal connections fines 20 250 35 491
Vending and hawking fines 1800 -
Pound Fees Fines 24 524 14 408
Municipal fraffic fines 339900 638 3040

386 474 638 199
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32. Employee related costs

Basic 76 022 357 71 686 201
Bonus 5700 117 5275074
Medical aid - company contributions 5317 118 4629 059
UIF 542 206 476 430
SOL 1137 455 899 230
Provision for leave 323 607 2 641 984
Cellphone allowance 739 317 728 636
Pansion fund contribution 9789795 8 492 847
Bargaining council contribution 291863 27 513
Overiime payments 1714813 1299704
Long-service awards 361682 18 978
Car aflowance 8 563 646 8 050 251
Housing benefits and aflowances 3 829 466 3761423
Other allowances : 1489 258 1431113
Standby and Uniform Allowance 1095 419 1003218

116 655 429 110 721 661

Remuneration of Municipal Manager

Annual Remuneration 41022 6831 977 653
Car Allowance 388 854 370338
Other 142 113 135 135

1 583 598 1483 126

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 760 731 724 745
Car Altowance 301 328 286 979
Other 209 368 199 187

1271 427 1216 911

Remuneration of Senior Manager: Corporate Services .
Annual Remuneration 863 278 8§27 515

Car Allowance 216 270 205 971
Other 188 517 179 328
1 268 065 1212 844

Remuneration of Senior Manager: Community Services

Annual Remuneration 829 252 826 087
Car Allowance 199 07¢ 205 971
Other 173 701 179 328

1202 032 1211 386

Remuneration of Sentor Manager: Engineering Services

Annual Remuneration 821 275 786 146
Car Allowance 254 285 242 177
Other 192 839 181 633

1 268 399 4 209 956

Remuneration of Senior Manager: Planning and Davelopment

Annual Remuneration 875 048 825612
Car Allowance 216 270 205 971
Other 188 517 179 327

1279833 1210 810
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33. Remuneration of councillors

Celiphone Allowance 2 581 297 2732 450
Public Office Allowance 1110 046 1063 624
Car Allowance 5513482 5318 106
Annuai remuneration 15 577 388 14 850 195

24 782 223 23 964 375

34. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plani and equipment 44 §71 146 40 050 485
intangible assels 26 068 129176

44 097 214 40 179 661

35. Finance costs

QOther interest paid - 1473

36. Lease rentals on operating lease

Equipment
Contractual ameounis 3643 567 5145 360

Operating lease paymeants represents rentals payable by the municipality for certain of its office equipment. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No condigent rent is payable.

37. Debt impairment

Movement-allowance for doubtful debis 821 631 5208 182
Bad debis written off - -

821 631 5208 182

During the menth of March 2020 a state of national disaster was declared due to the outbreak of the Covid-18 global pandemic which
was then followed by the enforcement of the nationai lockdown. The state of national disaster was then lifted in April 2022. The state of
the ecanomy in the country had been impacied negatively and therefore affected the peopie's affordability to pay for municipal levies
and services as they were unable to earn an income.

This has resulted in the municipality's assessment indicating that more debt may not be collectible resuling in a increase in the
allowance for doubtful debts for the period as indicated above.
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38. Bulk purchases
Eiectricity - Eskom 40 211 160 35021699
Electricity losses

Number Numbper

2022 2021

Units purchased 22001 357 22 910890 40 211 160 35021 699
Units sold (19 995 580) (20 774 379) (38809 838) (34 221 010)
Total loss 2005777 2136 311 1 601 321 800 689
Comprising of:
Non-technical [csses 2005777 2136 311 3822670 2994 413

Percentage Loss:
Non-technical losses

9%

9 %

According to the NERSA cost of supply framework the tolerable range for energy losses is 5% to 12%.
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38, Contracted services

Other Contracted Services

Other Contractors 471 976 3711729
QOutsourced Services

Business and Advisary 4700 922 3 872707
Catering Services 15 300 -
Cleaning Services 18 488 -
Internal Auditors 508 511 773728
Meter Management 1 546 826 286 579
Medical Services [Medical Health Services & Suppor - 251 500
Personnel and Labaur 2638 010 2637 929
Refuse Remaval 1 456 800 1852 390
Transporl Services 334 495 20 600
Cansultants and Professional Services

Business and Advisary 1258 558 720 456
tegal Cost 7478072 6679078
Contractors

Catering Services 3 400 354 2 324 948
Electrical 11 040 022 899 828
Event Promoters 288 894 494 370
Maintenance of Buildings and Facilities 3487 752 3504732
Maintenance of Equipment 397 727 862 940
Maintenance of Unspecified Assets 10 115 206 884 586
Pest Controf and Fumigation - 196 138
Safeguard and Security 7 834973 6 296 918
Stage and Sound Crew 77 600 20100

57 071 486 32 951 257

40. Transfer and subsidies

Other subsidies
SMME Support 1251 198 4 498 717

The municipality through its LED section supports qualifying small businesses and farmers with necessary equipment and tools to make
their operations sustainable. The projects are selected threugh councit processes and supported as per the required assistance which is
anly in the forms of tocls and equipment,
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41. General expenses
Advertising 474 352 645 460
Auditors remuneration 3228513 2722 939
Bank charges 138 424 111 520
Commission paid 682 830 762 227
Consumables 5007773 4 245 408
Promotional material and Gifts 1361769 2017 376
Hire 3722375 1 700 608
Insurance 2302 399 855 822
IT expenses 1158 401 2246 294
Magazines, books and periodicals 711845 1 150 950
Motar vehicle expenses 5200 37 600
Fuel and ail 2 678 820 2 400 436
Piacement fees - 15 400
Pastage and courier 3295 554
Printing and stafionery 464 871 503 054
Protective clothing 852 975 2112020
Subscriptions and membership fees 58 1G9 35136
Telephone and fax 2 980 884 2348 235
Training 520 963 846 554
Travel - local 7 866 954 2 585671
Travel - overseas B 5793
Free hasic services 4 994 211 4 876 883
License fees 318 256 142 763
Ward committae fees 4977 905 6210 408
Other expenses 1703 263 1681 842
Landfill site rehakbilitation 17 955 2565 13708
64 170 451 41 474 662

42. Loss on disposat of assets

Gain or loss on disposal of assets and liabilities

43. Fair value adjustments

Investment preperty (Fair value model)

44, Auditors' remuneration

Fees
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45, Cash generated from operations

Surplus 61471783 157 175 597

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 44 097 214 40 179 661

(Gain or loss on sale of assets and liabilities 46 551 292 43 412 919

Fair value adjustments (2 461 400} {1 069 294}
Impairment deficit 8 555 816 -
Debt impairment 821 631 5208 182

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals (4 048 568) (3175 532)
Movements in provisions 16 859 720 483 357

Other non-cash movement (464 853) {539 505)
Movement in retenticn and accruals on PPE (5 399 779) (16 087 G607)
Changes in working capital:

Inventaories 1 596 623 (3982)
Other Receivables from exchange transactions ) 7 047 944 (3 440 408)
Consumer debtors {6 237 705) (8 847 117)
Receivables from non-exchange fransactions {484 720) (370 051)
Statutory recaivables {2 339 301) (5 520 499)
Prepayments 5 {58 347 (3694 073)
Payables from exchange transactions 2 822 341 14 103 934

VAT 2825 39% (7 651 383)
Unspent conditienal grants and receipts 2 386 696 (2 516 087)
Consumer deposits 1258 1728

178 759 738 207 670 442
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46. Commitments
Authorised capital expendliure

Already contracted for but not provided for

. Infrastructure Assets 9 950 840 4 296 693
. Integrated Electrification 1891 591 6 992 641
. Community Assets 7 032 997 37 061 482
. Other Assets 1379 822 6 006 047

20 255 050 54 357 143

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 20 255 050 54 357 143

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
. Operational expenditure 36 667 624 10 857 636

Total operational commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 36 667 624 10 857 636

Total commitments

Total commitments
Authorised capital expenditure 20 255 050 54 357 143
Authorised operational expenditure 36 667 624 10 857 636

56 922 674 65214 779

This committed expenditure relates to expenditure that will be financed by avaitable bank facilities, retained surpluses, existing cash
resources, funds internally generated, future grants allocations eic,

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Genhiz Minimum Lease payments due

- within one year - 260 704
- in second te fifth year inclusive - 260704
- 521 408

Munsoft Minimum Lease payments due
-within one year - 3012000

Techseeds Minimum Lease payments due

-within one year 1352 222 1352 221
- in second to fitth year inclusive 2704 447 4 056 669
4 056 669 5408 890

Operating lease payments represent rantals payable by the municipality for certain of its office equipment. No contingent rent is payable.
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47. Contingencies

At year end the municipality had the following contingent liabilities,

Cases against the municipality.

Case 1 Vuyokazi Tobho vs Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Claim for payments of R2 500 000 irc damages for injuries allegedly caused as a result of 1 560 000 1 500 000

being shot by an emplayee.

Case 2 Hlongwe vs Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Claim for payment of R19 637 500 iro damages for injuries allegedly caused as a result of 19 637 500 19 637 500

being shot by a municipal employee.

Mohamed Randareen vs Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Claim of electricity costs after meter tampering and for incorrect billing 148 000 -
21 285 500 21 137 500

Winnie Madikizela Mandela Local Municipality vs Public Protector

The matter is as a result of the Public Protectors Report on an investigation into allegations of corruption, maladministration/ misuse of
public funds by Senior and Executive government officials from the Municipality, wherein the Public Protector found that the Municipality
has spent an amount of R1,1 million in respect of the memorial service of the late mama Winnie-Madikizela Mandela for transportation

services improperly benefited certain government officials.

The municipality has spent a sum of R2 364 239.93 in legal fees.
The Public Protector has not file its Replying Affidavit.
Contingent assets

At year end the municipality had the following contingent assets
Cases lodged by the municipality:

Case 1 Gift Fynn VS Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Locai Municipality

This is an unlawful extensior: building without municiapl approval plans

Case 2 Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality vs Mr Charles Charalombos
t/a Bizana Cash and Carry

Unlawful extension of building without the approved of the plans

Winnie Madikizela-Mandela LM vs ATS Civils and Another
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2021

48. Related parties

Relationships

Mayor Ms TD Mafumbatha
Speaker Mr Z Mhlwazi/ Mr S Magini
Whip of Councit Mr M Mpeishwa

Executive Gouncil members- full time 4 members

Executive Council members- part time § part time

Council members 52 members

Section 57 Managers 6 members

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Councillior overpayment 563 694

In 2012713 and 2013/14 financial years, counciliors were paid a remuneration that was above the gazetted limits

The amounts were recorded as irregular expenditure and debtors were raised to account for the amounts owed.

Compensation to Accounting Officer and key management

Municipal Manager 1 553 598
Chief Financial Officer 1271 427
Senior Manager: Corporate Services 1 268 065
Senjor Manager; Community Services 1262032
Senior Manager: Engineering Services 1288 399
Senior Manager: Develepment Planning 1279 833
Mayor 924 747
Speaker 758 308
Councillors 23101 169

364 535

1483126
12109114
1212 814
1211386
1209 956
1210910
93¢ 396
760 393
22 284 586

The Mayor, Speaker and Whip of Council are full time. Each is provided with an office and secretarial support at the cost of the coundil.

The Mayor and Speaker have the use of council owned vehicles for official duties.
The Mayor has one full-time bodyguard and driver.

The Speaker has one full-time bodyguard and driver

Key management information

Class Description Number
Mayor Councillor 1
Speaker Gouncillor 1
Whio of Ceuncil Councillor 1
Executive committee Counciliors 9
Councillors Counciliors 52
Municipal Manager Accounting Officer 1
Chief Financial Officer Senior Manager 1
Senior Manager: Cerporate Services Senior Manager 1
Senior Manager: Communiiy Services Senior Manager 1
Senior Manager: Engineering Services Senior Manager 1
Senior Manager: Development Planning Senior Manager 1
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48. Related parties (continued)

Management class: Executive management

2022
Basic salary Travel/Car Other Benefits Total
Allowance
Senior Management
Municipal Manager 1022 631 388 854 142 113 1 553 598
Chief Financial Officer 760 731 301 328 209 368 1271427
Senior Manager: Engineering Services 821 275 254 285 192 839 1268 399
Senior Manager: Corperate Services 863 278 218 270 188 517 1268 065
Senior Manager: Community Services 829 252 199 079 173 701 1202 032
Senior Manager: Development Planning 875 048 218 270 188 517 1279 833
5172 213 1 576 086 1 095 055 7 843 354
2021
Basic salary Travel/Car Other Benefits Totaf
Allowance
Senior Management
Municipal Manager 977 653 370 338 135135 1483126
Chief Financial Officer 724 745 286 979 199 187 1210911
Senior Manager: Engineering Services 786 148 242 177 181633 1209 956
Senior Manager. Corporate Services 827 515 205 671 179 328 1212 814
Senior Manager: Community Services 826 087 205 871 179 328 1211 386
Senicr Manager: Development Planning 825612 205 671 179 327 1210910
4 967 758 1517 407 1 053 938 7 539103
Management class: Key advisors/Sub committees
2022
Fees for services  Tavel Claims Total
as a member of
management
Internal Audit Committee ‘
Chairperson of the audit committee 93 921 4 482 98 403
Audit committee members 82 704 12874 85 378
176 625 17 156 193 781
2021
Fees for services Travel Claims Tatal
as a member of
management
Internal Audit Committee
Chairperscn of the audif committee 71065 2070 73135
Audit committee members 78 180 - 78180
149 245 2070 151 315

48. Change in estimate

Property, plant and equipment

The full useful lives of certain Property, Plant and Equipment and their residual values were revised in the current year pertaining to intangibles,
movahble and immovable assets with reductions and extensions fo useful lives ranging between 2-13 years and residual vaiues ranging between
7% to 28% of assets costs, with the exception of generators. The overall effect of this revision has been an increase in depreciation charges for
the current and prior year of R840 930.87 (2021 R 654 §22) respectively and an increase in future depreciation charges of R841 660.

This has resuited in a decrease in current year's carrying amounts of ceriain property, plant and equipment by R840 930,87 and a fufure
increase in carrying amounts of certain praperty, plant and equipment of R841 660.13.
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50. Risk management
Financial risk management

The municipality'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and fiquidity risk.

The municipality’s cverall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the municipality’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (entity treasury)
under policies approved by the accounting officer. Municipality treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation
with the municipality's aperating units. The accounting officer provide written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering speacific areas.

Liquidity risk

The municipality's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages Fquidity risk through
an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the municipality's financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabifities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement af financial position to the contractuai maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discaunting is not
significant.

At 30 June 2022 Less than % year Between 1 and 2 Between 2and 5 Over 5 years
years years

Trade and ather payables 47 256 789 - - -

Cansumer Deposits 2 886 173 671 25269 303 951

At 30 June 2021 Less than 1 year Beiween 1 and 2 Between 2 and 5 Over 5 years
years years

Trade and other payabies 44 334 448 - - -

Consumer Deposits 1728 173671 25 269 303 951

Liquidity risk is mainly concentraled on the trade and other payables balance. The municipality does not have any collateral and /or credit
enhancements that aid in the mitigation of the liquidity risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits
cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and fimits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credi risk relating fo customers on an ongoing basis. If
customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Othenwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assessas the credit quality
of the customar, taking into account its financial pesition, past experience and other factors.

The financial assets carried ai amortized cost exposed the municipality to credit risk. The value of the maximum exposure to credit risk are as
foilows for each class of financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial instrument 2022 2021

Cash and Cash equivalenis 277 108 823 258 162 213
Other receivables from exchange transactions 2373190 9421134
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1727 859 1243 139
Receivables from exchange transactions 25 830 092 20514 019
Market risk

[nterest rate risk

The municipality limits its interest risk exposure by only conducting business with financial institutions registered in terms of Bank Act 94 of
1990.

51. Golng concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2022, the municipality had an accumulated surplus (deficit) of R 1 080 344 245 and that
the municipality's total assets exceed is liabilities by R 1 090 344 245,
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51. Going concern (continued)

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settiement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments wiil occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality ta continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of other factors. The most significant of these is
that the accounting officer continue to source and explore mare funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality
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52. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 376 912 4 320 803
Add: Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure identified - current - 1473
Add: Prior period correction - 355000
Less: Amount written off - current (21 912) (4 300 364)
Closing halance 355 000 376 912

During the year it was discovered that a service provider who was appointed to deliver equipment in support of fisheries delivered the
equipment in June 2021 and payment was processed accordingly but subsequent to that the municipality was informed that the

supplier had repossed the equipment claiming that no payment was received.

The municipality followed that up and requested the bidder to rectify the situation falling which the maoney be refunded to the
municipaity. The bidder agreed to pay back the money but to-date no paymnet has been made. This expenditure has then been
reclassified as a Fruitiess and wastefull expenditure in the year in which it was incurred resulting in a prior year correction, however a

corresponding debtor has been raised in the books of the municipality.
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64, Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Contributions to organised local government
Opening balance 191 181
Current year subscripticn / fee 661 553 667 362
Amount paid - current year (661 553) (667 362)
191 191
Audit fees
Current year subscription: / fee 3228 513 2722939
Amount paid - current year {3228 513) (2 722 939)
PAYE and UIF
Opening balance 2994 2994
Current year subscription / fee 20 350 567 17 970 479
Amount paid - current year (20 350 567} (17 670 479)
2994 2954
Pension and Medical Aid Deductions
Opening balance (43 308) (43 308)
Current year subscription / fee 23 759 343 11 640 627
Amount paid - current year (23 759 343) (11 640 627}
(43 308) (43 308)
Skills Development Levy
Opening balance (90) (90)
Current year subscriptionffee 1232 867 884 5§48
Amount paid - current year {1 232 867) (884 848)
{90} (90)
VAT
VAT receivable 12783 850 15 608 949

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughaut the year year.
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55, Deviation from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12{1){d){i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management pelicy must
provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accaunting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in certain
sircumstances, orovided that he records the reascns for any deviations and reports them ta the next meeting of the councii and inciudes
a note to the audited annual financial statements.

Winnie Madikizela-Mandeia LM have incurred expenditure by not following the Supply Chain Management policy during the year. The
were no three quotes obtained as per the SCM policy for supply of groceries for mass funeral ,hiring of crane truck and car repairs.
These procurement resulted to Deviations tofalling to RG4 3988.04.

Supply Chain Management Regulations

In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain Management Policy
needs to be approved by the Municipal Manager and nated by Council. The expenses incurred as listed hereunder have been approved.

Emergency Procurement

Supply and defivery of Groceries for Mass Funeral 5580 -
Hiring of Crane Truck 15 000 -
Staff car repair damaged during community unrest 43 819 -
Reviewal of Dumping Site Financial Projections - 198 850
Hiring of Crane Truck for emergency replacement of damaged transfomer - 2890
Emergency Maintenance of Municipal Toilels - 28200
Emergency VIP Catering for Safety Awareness Campaign - 12 000
Emergency VIP Catering for Safety Awareness Campaign - 15 000
Catering of 150 peaple for community Safety Awareness Campaign - 12 750
Hiring of Tent, Podium, Deccr and Tables for Safety Awareness Campaign - 29 950
Catering of 100 peopie for Cammunity Safety Awareness Campaign - 8 500
Catering of 150 people for Community Safety Awareness Campaign - 12 750
Siill Water for 500 people for Traffic Awareness - 12 000

64 399 334 990
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56. Accounting by principals and agents

The municipality is a party to a principal-agent arrangement(s).

Details of the arrangment{s) islare as follows:

The Municipality has been registered as a registering authority in accordance with section 3(1) of the Road Traffic Act, 1996 (Act No. 93 of
1896), subject to the conditions imposed by the Member of the Executive Councll (MEC) respansible for Transport. As such the Municipality
performs the functions of a registering authority as contemplated by sectien 3(1) of the Road Traffic Act, read with the National Road Traffic
Regulation

The revenue that is derived from the registration and licensing of motor vehicles is paid into the Provinclal Revenue Fund as required by
section 41 of the Eastern Cape Road Traffic Act, 1998 (Act No.3 of 1999), while the Municipality, in order to perform its functions as a
registering authority, and in the spirit of co-operative governance as enshrined in Chapter 3 of the Constitution, is eniitled te receive a porlion of
the revenue genherated, subject to the terms and conditions as set out in the Agreement, with parficular reference to clause 6 of the Agreement.

Municipality Is entitled to a fee equal to the collection fee of 19% (nineteen percent), including VAT for alt fees collected in terms of clause 6.2
for motor vehicle registration and licensing fees.

Municipality shall, in terms of applicable national and provincial road traffic legislation and the Agreement, be responsible for the following
motor vehicle registration and licensing functions:registration of vehicles,vehicle search,issue of duplicate registration certificate deregistration
of a mator vehicle,change of particulars of an ownar ar a tilleholder with respect to registration and licensing,change of particulars of a motor
vehicleissue of a temporary or special permit;licensing of a vehicle in a private person’s or legally recognised entity's name; licensing of a
financed vehicle, in a private person’s or legally reccgnised entity’s name; licensing and aflocating of a personalised licence number; retention
of a vehicie licence number; notification of change of titteholder and or ownership of a vehicle; processing address changes as required;
application for refund, if due, to be issued by the Department of Transport, Head office in King Wiliam's Town Eastern Cape Province;
application for special classification of & vehicle; application for Traffic Register Number; application for Motor Trade Number; referral of all
motor vehicle registration and licensing queries, complaints and disputes to the Departmental employee specified by the Transport Regulation
contact person within 2 (two} working days of a query or lodging of & complaint or dispute; and any other transaction reasonably requested by
the Department.

The municipality is licenced to distribule elactricity in town for which the municipality has a vending contract with Conlog for the utilisation of
their system to distribute or to self electricity tokens.

As part of the distribution of electricity tokens Conlog also selis electricity lokens on behalf of the municipality for which the municipality
compensate Conlog for this senvice.

Entity as agent
Resources held on behalf of the principal(s), but recognised in the entity's own financial statements

The municipality has resources held on behalf of the principal{s) that are not recognised in municipality's financial statements, bul are
recognised in the principal financial statements

Revenue recognised

The aggregate amount of revenue that the entity recognised as compensation for the transactions carried out on behalf of the principal is
R1 202 570 {2021: R1 290 875).

Liabitities and corresponding rights of reimbursement recognised as assets

The municipality does not have liabifities incurred on behalf of the principal that have been recognised by the municipality.

The municipality does not have corresponding rights of reimbursement that have been recognised as assets.

Additional information

Receivables and/or payables recognised based on the rights and obligaticns established in the binding arrangement(s)
Entity as principal

Resources (including assets and liabilities) of the entity under the custodianship of the agent

The municipality has nc reseurces held on behalf of the municipality by the agent that are recognised either in the municipality's financial
slatements or the agent's financial statements.

Fee paid
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§6. Accounting by principals and agents (continued)
Fee paid as compensation to the agent 682 830 762 227
Resource andfor cost implications for the entity if the principai-agent arrangement is terminated

The termination of the agreement will nat result in any costs for both the principal and the agent, howsever, the municipality will need fo extend
operating hours, increase number of staff, increase service points.
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57. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The municipality is organised and reports to council on the basis of five functional areas: Electricity, Waste Management, Community and
Public Safety, Infrastructure Services and Development Planning. The segments wera organised around the type of service delivered.

Council uses these same segments for determining strategic objectives. Alf administrative segments have been aggregated as unaliccated
services,

information reported about these segments is used by council as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances and for making
dacisions about the allocation of rescurces. The disclosure of information about these segments is also considered appropriate for external
reporting purpeses.

Aggregated segments

The municipality operates throughout the Mbizana area with certain functions providing an administrative and support role. Segments were
aggregated on the basis of the services delivered as management considered that the characteristics of the segments were sufficiently
similar to warrant aggregation. These have heen aggregated to form the unallocated services.

Types of goods and/or services by segment

These reporiable segments as well as the goods and/or services for each segment are set out befow:

Reportable segment Goods and/or services

Electricity Electricity distribution

Waste Management Refuse removal services

Community and Public Safety Library Services, Palice force, Cemeteries, Enviromental Protection,
Recreational facilities, Social Services

Infrastructure Services ' Provision of infrastructure and Maintenance, Provision of community
facilities

Development Planning Local Economic Development, Supporting SMMEs, Property
Services and Spatial Planning

Unallacated services Administrative and support services

g2
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Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021

58. Prior period errors

The following adjustments were made to the prior year financial statements due to errors which were identified during the current year reviews
relating to pricr periods financial statements:

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

During the year it was discovered that a payment made to Alstonia Trading and Projects through a cession agreement of R418 046 relating to
services provided by the company on behalf of Zamadunga Business Enterprise on the 18th of December 2020 was also claimed and paid to
Zamadunga Business Enferprise which made this a double payment on the construction of the Civic Centre. Zamadunga Business Enterprise
has accepted the debt and requested that this amount be deducted from their retention when it falls due.

During the year a farmer employee of the municipality was found gully by a court of law of theft of municipal funds came to the municipality o
make payments in line with the court judgement that the municipaiity was not aware of. Upon investigation the municipality was able {o obtain
the court judgement which revealed that the municipality should have recognise a receivable of R180 CG0 in June 2009 but it was never
recognised. This error has since been corrected as a prior period error,

The carrection of this error has resulted in an increase in Receivables from non-exchange transactions by the same amount of R598 046.

Cash and Cash equivalents

During the year it was discovered that Interest received on Investment for the 2019/20 financial year which appeared on the June 2020
statement was not recorded. The interest has then been recorded in the 2020/21 finascial year as a correction of opening balances. The impact
of this error resulted to an understatment of Cash and Cash equivatents of R1 512.63.

The carrection of this error resulted te an increase in Cash and Cash equivalents R1 512.63

VAT Receivables

During the year it was discovered that on the 25th June 2021 the municipality paid an amount of R5 314 824.28 to Zamadunga Business
Enterprise for the construction of Bizana Civic Cenire which was later discovered that R2 202 802.93 of the amount paid related to work that
was not yet completed on the 25th June 2021.Input Vat on the transaction amoeunted to R287 322.12 which was an error because payment was
not due. This resulied in a decrease on Input Vat by R287 322,12,

The correction of this arror resuited to a decrease on Input Vat of R287 322,12,

Prepayments

During the year it was discovered that on the 25th June 2021 the municipality paid an amount of R5 314 824.29 to Zamadunga Business
Enterprise for the construction of Bizana Clvic Centre which inciuded an amount of R2 202 802.93 that related to work to be performed by
SMME's subconiracted to the project as part of the 30% government inifiative to capacitate small businesses of which werk was not yet
completed on the 30th June 2021 and subsequently the 3Cth June 2022,

Investigations revealed that the amount was paid in response to a plea by the appointed contractor io assist the SMMEs that were struggling to
pay for materials required to complete the project and therefore delaying progress. The municipality's appointed team of professionals then
advised the municipality pays the amount to the main contractor who wouid then procure the material reguired to ensure it is of the required
quality and therefore pay tha subcontractors when work is completed.

This resulted in a prepayment which resuited to an increase in prepayments of R2 202 802,93,

The coarrection of this error resulted in an increase on Prepaymets of R2 202 802.23

Property Plant and Equipments

During the year it was discovered that on the 25th June 2021 the municipality paid an amount of R5 314 824.29 to Zamadunga Business
Enterprise for the construction of Bizana Civic Centre which inciuded an amount of R2 202 802.93 that related to work to be performed by
SMME's subconiracted to the project as part of the 30% government initiative to capacitate small businesses of which work was not yet
completed on the 30th June 2021 and subsequently the 30th June 2022.

This resulted into a decrease in Work in Progress of R1 915 480.81 exclusive of Inpui Vat of R287 322.12
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58. Prior pericd errors (continued)

It was also discovered that on the 30th of June 2021 a sceptic tank with a total value of R396 704 was completed and recognised as part of
accruals, However, this amaount was incorrectly recognised as contracted services instead of Property Plant and Equipment. The impact of this
error was an understatement of property plant and equipment.

It was also discovered that during 2020/21 financial year there was a dispesal of two roads infrastructure components with a total opening
accumulated impairment of R36 435.52. This accumutated impairment was never correctly derecagnised during disposal. The impact of this
error was an understatement of property plant and equipment..

During the year it was discovered that a payment made to Alstonia Trading and Projects through a cession agreement of R418 046 relating to
services provided by the company on behaif of Zamadunga Business Enterprise on the 18th of Dacember 2020 was alsc claimed and paid to
Zamadunga Business Enterprise which made this a double payment on the construction of the Civic Centfre. Zamadunga Business Enlerprise
has accepted the debt and requestad that this amount be deducted from their retention when it fails due.

This correction resulted in a decrease on Work in Pregress of R418 046,

D(Jring the year it was discovered that on the 23rd of June 2021 the municipality fransferred ERF 940 property to a private owner. The disposal
transaction relating to ERF 940 was never processed. The impact of this error was an cverstatement of Land by R4 361.45, Building by R25
162.22 and Accummeiated depreciation by R5 024.07. The net movement is R24 499.60.

The corrections of these errors resulted in a net decrease of R1 924 884 on Property, plant and equipmen
Provisions

During the year it was discovered that the number of leave days for Senior Managers was incorrectly capped on 24 [eave days while the leave
days for Senior Managers should not exceed 48 leave days as per the policy of the municipality. The impact of this error resulted in a
understatement of the Leave Provision.

The correction of this error resulted in a net increase of R635 503,
Payables from exchange transactions

During the year it was discovered that an amount of R19 397.50 was transacted directly on Net Assets.These transactions were raised as
Payables from exchange transactions of RS 800 for catering services and R3 497.50 for Spatial development framework review in 2021
financial year. Due te work not done the transaction for Catering services of RS 900 and R8 497.50 for Spatial Framework review which was
already included as an accrual were then reversed in 2022 financial year. The Impact of these fransactions resulted to a overstatement of
Payables from exchange transactions,

The correction of this error resulted in a decrease in Payables from exchange transactions of R18 397.50
Employee Related Cost

During the year it was discovered that the number of leave days for Senior Managers was incorrectly capped on 24 leave days while the leave
days for Senior Managers should not exceed 48 leave days as per the paolicy of the municipal. This error resulted 1o an understatement of
Employee related cost of R695 503.

The correction of this error resufted in a net increase of R695 503,
Contiracted Services

During the year it was discovered that on the 301h of June 2021 a sceptic tank with a total value of R396 704 was completed and recognised as
part of accruals. However, this amount was incorrectly recognised as contracted services instead of Property Plant and Equipment, The impact
of this error was an underslatement overstatement on contracied services.

Curing the year it was discovered that an amount of R19 347.50 was fransacted direcily on Net Assets.These transactions were raised as
Payables from exchange transactiios of R9 900 far catering services and R9 497.50 for Spatial development framewaork review in 2021 financial
year. Due to work not done the transaction for Catering services of R9 908 and R9 497.50 for Spatial Framework which was already included
as an accrugl, these transaction were then reversed in 2022 financial year. The impact of these transactions resulted to an overstatement of
Contracted Services.

The correction of this error resulted in a decrease of R416 101.50 en Contracted Services
Loss of disposal sof asset
During the year it was discovered that during 2020/21 financial year there was a disposal of two roads infrastructure components with a total

opening accumulatad impairment of R36 435.52. This accumutated impairment was never correctly derecognised during disposal. The impact
of this errer is an overstatement of loss on disposal of assets 8 labifities,
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58. Prior period errors (continued)

The correction of this error resuited in a net decrease of R36 435,52,

Accumuiated Surplus

During the preparation of annuat financial statement various journals were processed in order to correct prior year figures.

An increase in Leave Provision and increase Employee rejated cost of R695 503 resulted to a decrease on Accumutated Surplus of R695 503,

An increase on property plant and equipment and decrease in contracted services of R396 704 resulted to an increase on Accumulated
Surplus of R396 704.

An Increase on praperty plant and equipment and decrease in loss on disposal of assets & liabilities resulted to an increase on Accumulated
Surplus of R36 435.52.

The decrease in Payablés from exchenge transactions and a decrease in Contracted services resulted to an increase in Accumulated Surplus
of R19 397.50

The Ihcrease in Interest received and Other receivables from exchange transactions resulted to an increase of R1 512,63 in Accumulated
Surplus. '

During the year it was discoverad that on the 23rd of June 2021 the municipality transferred ERF 940 property te a private owner. The dispasal
transaction relating to ERF 940 was never processed. The impact of this error was an overstatement of Land by R4 381,45, Building by R25
162.22 and Accummulated depreciation by R5 ¢24.07. The net movement is R24 499.60.

During the year a former employee of the municipality was found gulty by a court of law of theft of municipal funds came to the municipality to
make payments in line with tha court judgement that the municipality was not aware of. Upen investigation the municipality was able fo cbtain
the court judgement which revealed that the municipality should have recognise a receivable of R180 000 in June 2009 but it was never
recagnised. This error has since been corrected as a prior period error

The cumulative effect of alt changes that have occured resulted in & net decraase of RB5 949 on Accumulated Surplus.

Commitments

During the year management revised the commitment register to alse present commitment from operating projects te enhance the presentation
and classification of commitments for users of financial statements ta have a more clearer picture of the types of commitments the municipality
has.

This has resuited in a new category of commitments relating to operating projects reclassified from other assets

An exercise was done during the year to get user departments o provide more information and confirmation on commitments that either had
very small amounts or there was no mavement on the commitments compared to the prior year whether these were still ongeing projects. This
confirmation revealed that most of the projecis were completed in the prior years and the remaining balances were savings realised from the
projected bid prices.

The commitment adjusted resulted to a downward adjustment of R3 187 669 as a result of confirmed savings frem completed projects.

Commitmenis

As previously reported - 68 402 449
Prior year corrections - (3 187 669)
Restated balance “ 65 214779

Commitments categories as previously reported
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for

Infrastructure assets - 4 296 993
Integrated elactrification - 6992 641
Community asseis - 37 061 462
Other commitments - 16 863 683

- 65 214 779
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B8. Prior period errors {continued)

Revised commitments categories

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

Infrastructure assets - 4 296 993

Integrated electrification - 6992 641

Community assets - 37 061 462

Other assets - 8 006 047

Authorised operaticnal expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

Operational expenditura - 10 857 636
- 65214779

59, Prior-year adjustments

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash flow

statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:
Statement of financial position

2021

Note

Receivables from non exchange transactions
Cash and Cash equivaient

VAT Receivables

Prepayments

Property.plant and equipment

Provisions

Payables from exchange transaction
Accumulated Surplus

Statement of financial performance
2021

Note
Employee relaied Cost

Contracted Services
Loss on disposal of assets

Surplus for the year

Cash flow statement
2021
Nate
Cash flow from operating activities
Sale of goods and services

Employee Cosi
Suppliers

Cash flaw from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

99

As previously  Carrectien of Restated
reporied errar
645 093 598 046 1243139
258 160 700 1513 258 162 213
15 896 271 (287 322) 15 608§ 949
14 974 173 2 202 803 17 176 976
701 498 620 {1524884) 688573136
(19 990 321} {685 502) {20 685 823)
(44 353 846) 16398 (44 334 448)
{1 028 958 387) 85048 (1028 872 449)
(102 128 307) - (102128 307)
As previously Correciion of Restated

reported
(110 026 158)

(33 367 359)

(43 424 855)

errar
(895 503)
416102
11 936

(110 721 661)
(32 951 257)
{43 412 918)

(186 818 372)

(267 465)

(187 085 837)

As previcusly
reported

47 471 065
(133 990 533)
(128 652 242)

Correction of
arror

(132 237)
(695 503)
(1110 597)

Restated

47 338 828
(134 686 0386)
(129 772 839)

{215 181 710)

{1 938 337)

{217 120 047)

(125 364 871)

1936 824

(123 428 047)
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60. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

The municipality give an explanation on materiaf variance that more that 5% as per the MFMA Circular 71.
Statement of Financial Performance

Rental of facilities and equipement

The excess actual revenue more than budget is due to increase lease rentals as a result of new lease agreements that were signed towards
tha end of |ast financial year.

Agerncy services

The actual revenue being less than the budget is due to the impact of Covid an the economy. Department of Transport was having challenges
with their services, extension dates for licence renewals and faulty machine causing delays on issuing,

Commissions received
The excess actual revenue mere than budget is due addilionat 3rd party payroll transactions the municipality is receiving commission from.
Recoveries

These are insurance recoveries which the municipality dees not budget for. These recoveries were as a result of municipal assets that were
written off /stolen during the year.

Other income

The actual revenue being less than the budget is due to tender fees that have been since discontinued as tender documents are now
uploadeded on the eTender portal. There has also been a decline on adhoc advertising fees and funeral fees as more peopie prefer to use rural
homestead burials than the grave yard in town,

Licence and permit

The excess actual revenue more than budget is due to recovery on Licences and permit afier National disaster, the budget catered for impact
of national disaster and the extension of grace period for licence renewat,

Transfer recognised- capital contributiont

The actual income less than the budget is due to GBS Grant that the municipality budgeted for and the municipality did not recive it in the
2021/22 financial year.

Public contributions and donations
The asset donations were nat budgeted for as the municipality was not expecting any donation of an asset.
Fines, Penalties and forfaits

The revenue for fines was adjusted down during the adjustment budget based on the assesment of actual perfomance for fines hilled. The
decrease on fines is due people not found to have contravened with faws.

Finance Cost

During the financial year the municipality improved its internal controls on managing finance cost.

Lease rentals on operating lease

The actual expenditure heing less than the budget is savings as a result of implementation of cost containment measures.
Depreciation

The depreciation budgeted for was based on old and new assets that were going to be procured and constructed. Mast of the construction
assets were not completed during the year, which resulted to underspending on depreciafion.

Impairment losses
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60. Budget differences (continued)

The actuat expenditure being less than the budget is the result of the estimated damages caused by floods in April that was dane during budget
stage. The outcome of the impairment was less as the result of some assels that were affected by floods being repaired.

Debt Impairment
The actual exepnditure being less than the budget is due the implementation of credit contral,
Contracted services

The actuals expenditure being less than the budget is savings due to implementation of cost containment measures. This is as a result of slow
spending during the first months of each financial year which is always experienced and the municipality finds it difficult to recover from.

Transfers and subsidies

The actual expenditure being less than budget is savings to the municipality. There was also a period of over three months where government
procurement of over R30 000 was halted resulting in major interruptions in government spending during the period.

Loss on disposal of assets

The variance on loss on disposal is as the resull of the municipakity budgeting for cerlain Electrification projects that were going to be
completed during the finacial year and the roads that were disposed as they were badly damaged by the floods.

General expense

The actuals expenditure being less than the budget is savings due ta implementation of cost containment measures. This might be as a result
aof the slow spending during the first months of each financial year which is always experiencaed and the different stages of covid-19 regulations
which has meant little activity was recorded for the municipality and some events being cancelied. There was also a period of aver three
months where government procurament of over R30 000 was haited resulting in major interruptions in government spending during the period.
Fair value adjustment

The increase in Fair value adjustment Is due to fair value adjustments perfomed by the independent valuer al year end.

Statement of Financial Position

Inventories

The actual expenditure being less than the budget i savings. There was also a period of over three months where government procurement of
aver R30 000 was halted resulting in major interruptions in government spending during the period.

Other receivables from exchange fransactions

The budget for aperating lease, vat, prepayments and receivables from exchange transactions is budgeted under the other recelvables frem
exchange transactions. The actual perfomance compared to the budget is as the result of increase on lease rentals, accrued income not
received from service provider and increase on recelvables from exchnage transaciions. The budget format has group these items together and
are reported on budget formats as part of receivables from exchange transaction not as a separate line item.

Receivables from non exchange

The statutory receivables and receivables from non exchange transactions are reported as part of receivabies from non exchange transactions
on hudget formats. The budget was based on audited figures from prior year,

Cash and Cash equivalent

The actual cash on hand as at 30 June 2022 was due fo savings realised on increase on interest received, rental of facifities and equipment
and licence and permits more than budget. Furthemore, the reduced spending on general expenditure,contracted services which may be
attributable to the over three months where governmeant procurement of over R30 000 was halted.

Investment Property

The increase in investment property is due 1o fair value adjustments perfomed by the independent valuer at year end,

intangible assets

The variance on intangible assets is due to change in useful life of an asset,
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60. Budget differences {continued)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

The municipality does not budget for unspent granis as these are meant to be fully spent by the end cf the year. The difference isthe Libray
grant and GBS Grant that was not fully spent during the year.

Payables from exchange transactions

The excaess of actual payables being mare than the budget is due to increase in accruals at year end, increase in retention as the municipality
has been constructing assets and withhelding of retentions.

Provisions

The budget for provisions is based on the audited figures of 2020/21. The landfill provisian Is perfomed by an independed expert.
Cash flow étatement

Rate payers and others

The difference is caused by an increase on property rates hilling that has not been settled for the tear on certain govemment and household
accounts.

Interest income

The difference is caused by an unexpecied interest rate hikes by the reserve bank which has resuited in more interest generated on
investmenis as well an increase in tha prime lending rate which has affected interest charged on debtors

Suppliers

The difference is caused by the delays in procurement during the period where government procurement was suspended by National Treasury
for all procurement above R340 000.

Finance costs

The municipality did not incur any interest during the year.

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

The difference is caused by delays in procurement during the period where government spending was suspended by National Treasury, floods
in April 2022 affecting progress on some of the infrastructure, non-cash transfers of the prepayments for the stadium that were to have been
utitised by year-end as well as savings on other internally funded projects.

Purchase of heritage assets

This is caused by maintenance expenditure that gave the asset a new life but was internally planned as just normal maintenance.
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61. Impairment loss .

Impairments

Property, plant and equipment 8 555 818
FoRowing the severe weather events and the consequent damage caused in various provinces, a

national disaster was declared in ferms section 27(1) of the Disaster Management Act, 2002, The

response, as announced by the President In his address to the nation on 18 April 2022, will be

undertaken in a phased approach; the first being immediate humanitarian relief, second phase

relates to stabilisation and recavery which includes rehausing pecple who have lost homes and

restoring provision of services; and the third phase will focus on reconstruction and

rehabifitation, ++

The municipalily was also not spared as most of the infrasiructure along the coast was severely
damaged resulting in a nead for an impairment assessment which resuited in the impairment
reported above,

The following classes of asseis were affected as indicated

Infrastruciure Assets R4 115 053;

Community Assets R4 440 762

62. Events after the reporting date

There are currently no events to report on but management will continue assessing situation and gathering information through out the
reporting pericd to enable reporting as and when the need arises. Reporting by management wilt include,where applicable:

. nature of the event.

. estimaticn of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimation cannat be made.
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Appendix D

June 2022

Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended
Current Year

Prior Year

Actual Income Acteal Surplus H{Deficit) Actual Income Actual Surplus f{Deficit}
Expenditure Expenditure
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
Municipality
- 58 549 458 (58 549 458) Executive & Council/Maycr and Gouncil 822012 57 926 574 (67 104 562)
374 263 556 86 470 422 287 793 134 Finance & Admin/Finance 338 437 330 92 855 654 245 581 676
126 549 21101 420 {20 974 871) Flanning and Development/Economic 46 324 274 24 700 584 21 623 690
Davelopment/Plan
543 644 7 338 097 (6 794 453) Comm. & Social/Libraries and archives 192 521 9 955 337 (9762 816)
- 762 032 (762 032) Housing - 18 071 (818 071)
4284 845 14 082 610 (o 797 765) Public Safety/Police 3767 566 13 617 467 {9 849 901)
. 2079 390 (2 079 380) Sport and Recreation - 2 363 086 {2 363 0386)
- 1572412 (1 572 412) Environmental Pratectian/Poliution Control - 2158 644 {2158 644)
7 36¢ 174 23 255 990 {15 886 816) Waste Water Management/Sewerage 7771925 14 572 §52 {G 801 027)
45 458 000 45 013 746 445 254 Road Transport/Roads 5 536 676 89 004 625 (83 467 949)
67 708 794 79 676 484 {11 967 680) Electricity /Electricity Distribution 66 430 945 96 817 340 {30 386 394)
- 2 677 904 (2 677 904) Other/Air Transport - 3021133 {3021 133)
4585 755 562 342 579 965 157 175 597 469 283 250 407 811 487 61 471 783
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Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality
Appendix E(1)

June 2022
Actual versus Budget(Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June
2022

Current year Current year

2021 2021

Act. Bal. Adjusted budget Variance Explanation of Significant Variances greater than
10% versus Budget

Rand Rand Rand Var

Revenye

Property rates 21163 194 21283 321 {120127) (0.8)

Service charges 42 138 922 43 479719 (1340757  (3.1)

Rental of facilities and equipment 7 510 508 4022 358 3488 150 86.7 The excess actual revenue mare than budget is due 1o
increase lease rentals as a rasult of new lease
agreements taht were signed in the current finacial
year.

Interest received 15 474 310 15179 343 294 967 1.8

Agency senvices 1202 470 1336 712 (134 242)  (10.0)

Fines 386 474 938 096 (551 822)  (58.8) The revenue for fines was adjusted down during the
second adjusiment budget based on the assessment
of actual performance for fines billed.

Licances and permits 2 141 208 1 B78 648 262 583 14.0

Gaovernment grants and subsidies 375 834 380 395 148 019 (19 313 639) (4.9)

Government Donation 78 999 - 78 999 -

Other incoma - (zellup)} 891 384 982022 {90 638) {9.2)

Fv - - - -

456 821 850 484 248 236 {17426 386)  (3.6)

Expenses

Personnel (116 655 428) (119 489 338) 2833 909 (2.4)

Remuneration of councillars (24 782 223) {26 D06 BB4) 1224 661 4.7)

Dapreciation (44 097 214) (52 681 812) 8 584 598  (16.3) The depreciation budgeted for was based on old and
naw asseis that were going to be procured and
constructed. Most of the construction assets were not
completed during the year

Impairment loss {8 555 B14) (15 000 000) 6444184  {43.0)impairments were less than anticipated due to some
infrastruciure assets were repaired.

Finance costs - (150 000) 150000 (100.0)

Debt Impairment (821 831) (¢ 600 000) 8778369  {91.4) The municipality budgeted for debt impalrment using
the prior year provision, however this provision was
adjusted due to handing over of averdue accounts to
debt collectors. This resulted 1o municipality's debt
impairment being less than the budget.

Bulk purchases {40 211 160) (40 777 132) 585 972 (1.4)

Contracted Services - - - -

Cantracted Services (57 071 486) {98 784 694) 41713208  (42.2) The actual expenditure being less than budget is due

to the delays in procurement processes as a result of
misinterpretation of Constitutional court riding on the
Preferential Pocurerement Policy Framewark of 201
Transfers and subsidies (1251 198) {6 050 398} 4799198  (79.3) The actual expendiiure being lass than budget is due
to the delays in precurement processes as a result of
misinterpretation of Constitutional court ruling on the
Prefarential Pocurerement Policy Framework of 201
General Expenses (67 814 018) {78 665 421} 10 852 403 (13.8) The actual expenditure being less than budget is due
fo the delays in procurement processes as a result of
misinterpretation of Constitutional court ruling on the
Preferential Pocurerement Policy Framework of 2017,

(361 260 175) {447 206 677) 85 946 502 (19.2)
Other revenue and costs
Gain or loss on disposal of assets {46 551 292) (38 718 350) (7 832902)  20.2 The variance on foss on disposal of asset is as a result
and fiabilities of disposal of old roads at year end that were

rehabilitated during the year
Fair value adjustments 248% 400 - 2 461 400 - Mo surplus forecasted
{44 089 892) (38 718 390) (5371502) 139

Net surplus/ (deficit) for the year 61471 783 {1576 831) 63 148 614 (3 765.9)

Page 114



Winnie Madikizela-Mandela Local Municipality

Appendix E(2)
June 2022
Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June
2022
Additions Revised Budget Variance Variance Explanation of significant
variances from budget
Rand Rand Rand %

Municipality

Finance & Admin/Finance 1 854 653 6 178 00G 4323 347 70 Savings on procurement that
was nat dehe cn Computers

Plarning and Development/Economic 76743 679 109 684 108 32 940 430 30 Savings due to delays on

Develapment/Plan constructicn of Manufacturing
Hubs

Cormm. & Social/Libraries and archives 220 600 157 600 (63 000) {40} Transfering of compieted siab
fram WIP,

Pubiic Safety/Police - 800 00C 800 000 100 Savings on Pound equipmant
and Pound vehicle that was
pracured.

Waste Water Management/Sewerage 85 000 1120 045 1035045 92 Savings due non precuremsant
of Skip bins.

Road Transport/Reads 60 043 594 51 398 483 (8 645 111) (17} Maintained roads transfer o
Capital assets

Electricity /Electricity Distribution 26 323 404 26 750 000 426 596

165 270 930 196 088 237 30 817 307 16
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